
 

 

 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
Meeting: 
 

Cabinet 

Date and Time: 
 

Thursday 2 September 2021 7.00 pm 

Place: 
 

Council Chamber 

Enquiries to: 
 

Committee Services 
Committeeservices@hart.gov.uk 
 

Members: 
 

Bailey, Clarke, Cockarill, Kinnell, Neighbour 
(Leader), Oliver, Quarterman and Radley 

 
Joint Chief Executive CIVIC OFFICES, HARLINGTON WAY 

FLEET, HAMPSHIRE GU51 4AE 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

This Agenda and associated appendices are provided in electronic form only and 
are published on the Hart District Council website. 

 
Please download all papers through the Modern.Gov app before the meeting. 

 

 At the start of the meeting, the Lead Officer will confirm the Fire Evacuation 
Procedure. 

 

 The Chairman will announce that this meeting will be recorded and that anyone 
remaining at the meeting had provided their consent to any such recording. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

 
 

1   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of 5 August 2021 are attached to be 
confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

6 - 12 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence from Members*. 
 
*Note: Members are asked to email Committee services in advance of 
the meeting as soon as they become aware they will be absent. 
 

 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare disposable pecuniary, and any other interests*. 
 
*Note: Members are asked to email Committee Services in advance of 
the meeting as soon as they become aware they may have an interest 
to declare. 
 

 

4   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

5   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (ITEMS PERTAINING TO THE AGENDA) 
 

 

6   QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING Q1 - OUTTURN 
 
To present the Quarter One (Q1) forecast of the outturn position 
against the General Fund revenue budget to give an expectation of 
possible variances against budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Cabinet note 
 
i) the Quarter One forecast for the General Fund Revenue 

budget.   
ii) the key reasons for projected variations between actual 

expenditure and budgeted expenditure.  

 

13 - 16 

7   BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 
 
To consider the emerging budget for 2022/23 and the draft Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the issues around the emerging budget for 2022/23 be 
discussed and level of savings required noted.  
  
The tier system for rating savings be agreed.  

17 - 24 

Page 2



 

 

  
The timetable for 2022/23 budget setting be discussed and agreed.  
  
The reserves policy in Section 6 be discussed and agreed.  

  
Level One savings identified in 8.2 be agreed and implemented 
through incorporated into future iteration of Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy.  
  
Agree the preparation of Business Cases for Level Two savings 
detailed in 8.3 so that these savings can be considered in future by 
Cabinet.  

  
Agree the provision of £10K to enable the use of independent external 
consultants, where required, to enable assessment of the Level 
Two Business Cases.  
  

 
8   STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (SCI) 

 
To update the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) in 
respect of consultation procedures for planning 
applications and various updates in relation to planning policy. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
Adopts the updated Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) as set 
out at Appendix A, and 
 
Authorises the Head of Place in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Place to make any minor alterations and corrections to the SCI if 
required prior to publication on the Council’s website 
 

25 - 90 

9   HOUSING COMPANY PANEL 
 
The purpose of this report is to confirm the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee nominations for the Hart Property Management Company 
Scrutiny Panel and also to agree an update to the Key Worker lettings 
policy.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Cabinet agrees 
 

A. that Cllrs Davies, Farmer, Harward, and Smith comprise the 
2001/2022 Hart Property Management Company Scrutiny 
Panel which shall meet once a year to oversee company activity, 
provide strategic guidance, and advise the Council in its capacity 
as shareholder.  

 

91 - 92 

Page 3



 

 

B. that the definition of ‘Key worker’ status in the adopted Lettings 
Policy should include reference to 

 
a. essential full time charity staff delivering key frontline services in 

the local Charity sector,  

b. those employed in the Prison and Probation services and  
c. workers maintaining border security   

  
C. the Head of Corporate Services be authorised to make future 

minor adjustments to the Local Lettings Plan as an when 
appropriate.  

 
10   WEBSITE REDESIGN PROJECT 

 
To seek Cabinet endorsement of the proposed website redesign 
project and to enable it to commence the procurement process. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Cabinet approves the commencement of the website redesign 
project subject to a further report to Cabinet to confirm costings and 
specification following the completion of the procurement exercise.  
 

93 - 99 

11   CEV FUNDING 

During 20/21 the council was awarded a total £247k by Hampshire 
County Council to deliver the Hart Response Hub and associated 
services to our clinically extremely vulnerable (CEV) residents. Much 
of this was spent during the financial year, and the rest was placed in 
ear marked reserves so that it could be spent on projects that would be 
mobilised during 21/22. 

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for the 
remaining grant funding to be moved from capital to revenue budgets 
so that it can used to deliver the projects set out in the agreed 
Supporting Communities Plan, delivering the “Here for Hart 
“programme. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that Cabinet approve the transfer of the Clinically 
Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) monies (£143,421) from ear marked 
reserves into a revenue budget line and that the Head of Community 
Services be authorised to use the funds to support the delivery of the 
Supporting Communities Plan and the Here for Hart programme. 
 

100 - 
103 

12   CABINET WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To consider and amend the Cabinet Work Programme. 
 

104 - 
108 

 
Date of Publication: Tuesday, 24 August 2021 

Page 4



 

 
 12 

 

CABINET 
 
Date and Time: Thursday 5 August 2021 at 7.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

Present:  

Bailey, Clarke, Cockarill, Kinnell, Neighbour (Leader), Oliver and Radley 
 
In attendance:  Axam, Butcher, Forster, Smith 
 
Officers:  
Patricia Hughes Joint Chief Executive 
Emma Foy  Head of Corporate Services and Section 151 Officer 
Rachael Wilkinson Community Safety Coordinator 
Adam Green  Countryside Manager 
Steve Bennett Digitalisation Manager 
Helen Vincent Committee Services Officer 
 
 

28 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
At the previous meeting of Cabinet, Members considered the Welcome Back 
Fund and the Joint Chief Executive updated Members on: 
 

• The working party’s progress on the Council’s bid for an e-commerce 
platform.  The working party agreed to survey Hart's local businesses to 
see what they think of the introduction of an E-Commence platform for 
the district, in order to understand and benchmark demand/interest in 
the service. 

 
• Also, as a point of clarification, a funding bid from Fleet Bid was 

confirmed as a net figure, not including VAT, which therefore means 
that if they choose a contractor who is VAT registered an additional 
level of payment will need to be made. 

 
The Chairman announced the nomination of Councillor Drage to fill the outside 
body representation for Blackwater Valley Recreation and Countryside 
Management Committee and that the Council will no longer be representing 
Inclusion Hampshire or with The Vine Centre (Cllr Bailey confirming ongoing 
discussion around engagement with The Vine Centre, on a different footing. 
 
Based on the updates above and the minutes supplied, for the meeting of 1 July 
2021, they were confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

29 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies had been received from Councillor Quarterman. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 
 13 

 

30 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations made. 
 

31 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman had no announcements. 
 

32 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (ITEMS PERTAINING TO THE AGENDA)  
 
None. 
 

33 MINUTES FROM THE CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2021 were noted. 
 

34 HART DISTRICT COUNCIL CUSTOMER CARE POLICIES  
 
Members were presented with the refreshed and updated Council’s Customer 
Care Standards which reflects the changing nature of demand from our 
residents.  The refreshed policy responds to our customer needs and 
expectations and includes a more defined reference to social media and 
unreasonable behavour. 
 
Members asked what steps were being taken to improve our ablity to evidence 
service performance, responding to our customers and the use of generic email 
addresses.  The Joint Chief Executive informed Cabinet Members that Hart is 
updating their website, streamlining email contact details and are improving 
communication by looking at improving our telephone system. 
 
Members questioned feedback received from our customers on delivery of our 
services and were informed that we are reporting service standards on a monthly 
basis to ensure we are working smarter and more efficiently.  Cabinet were told 
there will be a subsequent report going to Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
outlining our complaints service. 
 
DECISION 
 
That Cabinet approved: 
1. The revised Customer Care Standards as set out in Appendix A. 
2. The revised Policy and Guidance for Dealing with Unreasonable 

Customer Behaviour as set out in Appendix B. 
 

35 COMMUNITY TRIGGER POLICY  
 
The Community Trigger was introduced in the Antisocial Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 to provide a mechanism for victims of persistent anti-social 
behaviour to request that relevant bodies undertake a case review. 
 

Page 6



 
 14 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee had a useful debate about this paper and 
asked for a point in Section 9 regarding anonymity to be clarified.  The policy has 
been updated to reflect this request with a clearer explanation and the insertion 
of a footnote around the requirements of local authorities to publish Community 
Trigger data but not Community Triggers themselves.  Further questioning was 
asserted around plans to communicate and promote the policy which will be 
addressed comprehensively upon adoption. 
 
Cabinet approval was sought for the policy be drawn up so it can be adopted 
and implemented. 
 
Members considered: 

• What factors constitute a qualifying complaint? 
• The impact on community. 
• That the policy reflects what can be done to improve circumstances 

what has been done and how we can improve the situation. 
• Mental health will be considered, and anonymity will remain. 

 
Members agreed that this is a great mechanism to bring agencies together to 
discuss complaints and resolve situations. 
 
DECISION 
 
Cabinet approved the adoption of the Community Trigger Policy. 
 

36 REVISED SAFEGUARDING POLICY & PROCEDURE AND MODERN 
SLAVERY TRANSPARENCY STATEMENT  
 
The Safeguarding Policy & Procedure was last updated in 2018 and is due for 
revision and update this year to include some additional information around Child 
Criminal Exploitation (CCE) and a new procedure for submitting referrals directly 
to Children’s or Adult’s Services, as appropriate.  The Modern Slavery 
Transparency Statement aims to show the council’s commitment to ensuring 
there is no Modern Slavery in the council’s supply chains. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee had a useful debate about the Safeguarding 
Policy & Procedure and asked for an additional appendix to be considered in a 
second draft to clarify around safeguarding in partnership.  The paper has been 
updated to reflect this request.  There was a further suggestion to produce a 
Quick Guide to Safeguarding reference sheet which will be created and 
circulated to staff and elected members by end of September 2021.  There were 
no changes requested to the proposed Modern Slavery Transparency 
Statement. 
 
Cabinet approval was sought for the revised Safeguarding Policy & Procedure 
and Modern Slavery Transparency Statement papers be drawn up so they can 
be adopted and implemented. 
 

Page 7



 
 15 

 

Members considered the areas of concern and want to be more proactive on 
investigating specific cases.  It was confirmed that our duty is to facilitate and 
bring attention to issues, raise concerns to the approved services and pass on 
the information for them to solve.   
 
DECISION 
 
Cabinet approved the adoption of the revised Safeguarding Policy & 
Procedure and Modern Slavery Transparency Statement.  
 

37 PARKRUN  
 
Cabinet were asked to approve for Parkrun volunteers to establish a new event 
at Edenbrook Country Park. 
 
The Countryside Manager answered questions raised: 
 

1. Access to the park and parking; There are concerns that the Leisure 
Centre and the carpark (for people visiting the Country Park) is 
inadequate, particularly when heavily used at the weekends. How will we 
prevent issues from car parking? 

 
Answer:  The organisers are in talks with both Everyone Active and Calthorpe 
Park School to agree the use of their car parks for event participants. 
 

2. Emerald Avenue has been used by parents collecting children from 
Calthorpe Park School which creates a dangerous situation for other road 
users on a blind bend. How will we prevent Park Run participants creating 
highway issues? 

 
Answer:  The organisers are in contact with all the participants and are very 
clear to runners where they can park and walk to the starting point.  This will also 
be signposted. 
 

3. The space outlined for use by Park Run is not just for dog walking but is 
well used for meeting friends, picnics, for young children to fly kites and 
play, and for the elderly come to sit on the benches when it is cool in the 
morning and late afternoon. How is it proposed that non Parkrun users 
access the field when the run route encircles the field, are they to be 
effectively banned from using the Park? 

 
Answer:  We agree there are some temporary restrictions to accessing all the 
park during this period, but we will work with Parkrun to make sure that there is 
available space away from the event for other users and ask that this is 
signposted. Marshalls will also be manning points where people will cross to 
maintain safety.  Routes can be adapted, and more space will become available 
at the Country Park in time with the construction of the Grove Farm extension 
and that will lessen the impact and leave most of the park free for other users.  
 

Page 8



 
 16 

 

4. How can we prevent conflict between runners, dogwalkers, cyclists and 
other people using the park? 

 
Answer:  We encourage good behaviour from all our users but understand that 
this is not always easy.  Participants are briefed before the run and have a “code 
of conduct” that encourages mindfulness to other park users.  
 

5. During heavy rain it is quite common for many of the paths to become 
flooded. This may encourage runners to run off the paths and onto the 
grassed areas causing damage to the flood plain. It takes days for the 
paths to recover from heavy rain and from October to March they barely 
recover at all. How will we prevent damage in such circumstances? 

 
Answer:  The event will not run during times were high rainfall or flooding is 
forecast. The route will be inspected, and the event cancelled if not found 
suitable. 
 

6. The grassed embankment, which is manmade, and runs from the Country 
Park car park alongside the residential properties is not owned or 
maintained by the Council but by all Edenbrook Village residents who pay 
a management fee that covers the maintenance of the embankment. What 
protections will there be to prevent the runners and spectators using this 
embankment and causing damage? 

 
Answer:  The contract will make sure that Parkrun is liable for any damages. We 
will also speak to them about suitable measure to protect this area from damage 
and any remedial action (such as barriers) to help protect this area.   
 

7. The events may also lead to noise and litter. Whilst the Park Run is 
anticipated to only last an hour, this will depend on how many people turn 
up and how fast they get round the route. How will the natural beauty of 
the area and the many different species of wildlife be protected?  

 
Answer:  We have deliberately kept the routes away from the areas with high 
wildlife value.  Participants are briefed beforehand and have a “code of conduct” 
that encourages mindfulness to other park users. Parkrun volunteers tidy the site 
after the event and collect litter from along the route.  
Anyone has the right to enjoy the park after the event as it is a country park open 
to all users.  We believe that the Parkrun is an event typical to country parks and 
is held in many across the country. 
 

8. How do we ensure the health and safety for those on site and ensuring 
emergency services have suitable access to the Country Park in the event 
of an accident? 

 
Answer:  The Country Park has an “emergency plan” that is shared with the 
emergency services and covers these eventualities.  Risk assessments will also 
be taken the by the event organisers and the emergency plan will be shared with 
them. 

Page 9



 
 17 

 

 
Members discussed at great length, their concerns about limiting capacity and 
the popularity of these events in other local areas.  Natural England confirmed 
that this use of SANG is totally acceptable for these events and Members 
considered the possibility of relocating Parkrun events to the Bramshott Park site 
once this is more established.  Members were cautious of putting conditions on 
the trial contract without understanding the future impact.  On reflection, there 
were also concerns on the impact of business to the Leisure Centre, impact on 
local residents and parking restrictions. 
 
DECISION 
 
The Chairman moved a new recommendation as follows: 
 
That, 

1. Hart enter in a 12 month agreement with Parkrun UK to enable them to 
establish a trial Parkrun event at Edenbrook Country Park, subject to 
conditions associated with the Park Run including the effective 
management of car parking (delegated to the Countryside Manager in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder to finalise the specific terms of the 
agreement).  This will be reviewed in six months, or earlier if there is a 
serious issue which permits for the immediate cancellation of the trial, 
delegated to the Countryside Manager in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder. 

 
Members agreed the new recommendation and Cabinet agreed: 
 

1. That Hart enter in a 12 month agreement with Parkrun UK to enable them 
to establish a trial Parkrun event at Edenbrook Country Park, subject to 
conditions associated with of the Park Run including effective 
management of car parking (Delegated to the Countryside Manager with 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder to finalise the specific terms).  This 
will be reviewed in six months, or earlier if there is a serious issue which 
permits for the immediate cancellation of the trial, delegated to the 
Countryside Manager in consultation with the Portfolio Holder. 

 
2. That £1,000 funding be drawn down from the Health Eating and Lifestyles 

reserve to contribute towards the set up. 
 

38 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2020/2021  
 
Cabinet considered the Council’s Treasury Management activities during the 
2020/21 financial year.  The S151 Officer confirmed that we had met all the 
requirements for the CIPFA Code of Practice and borrowing levels are within all 
indicators required. 
 
DECISION 
 

Page 10



 
 18 

 

The Treasury Management Outturn statement during the financial year ended 31 
March 2021 be noted. 
 

39 CABINET WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Cabinet Work Programme was considered and amended: 
 

1. A report on the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) to be 
considered in September. 

2. Food and Health & Safety Service Plan postponed to October. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 8.46 pm 
 
 

Page 11



 

CABINET 
 
DATE OF MEETING: 2 SEPTEMBER 2021 
  
TITLE OF REPORT: QUARTER ONE – REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2021 
  
  
Cabinet member:  Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance and 

Assets. 
  

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 To present the Quarter One (Q1) forecast of the outturn position against the 

General Fund revenue budget to give an expectation of possible variances 
against budget 

  
2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1 To note  

i) the Quarter One forecast for the General Fund Revenue budget.  
ii) the key reasons for projected variations between actual expenditure 

and budgeted expenditure. 
  
3 BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 This report provides the first monitoring position statement for the financial 

year 2021/22. The purpose is to notify members of any known significant 
variations to budgets for the current financial year, highlight any key issues 
and to inform members of any action to be taken if required.  

  
3.2 The first quarter of 2021/22 has continued to be impacted by Covid-19 with 

extended restrictions continuing until 22nd June 2021. The previously 
approved arrangement to waive Leisure Contract contractual income 
continued until the 30th June 2021.  
 

3.3 This quarter is the last quarter where compensation income could be claimed 
from Central Government. The claim deadline for Q1 is August 2021. It is 
expected that a claim of approximately £330K will be submitted. 
 

4 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING  
  
4.1 In February 2021, the Council approved a total net service budget of 

£10,794k. Budgeted expenditure at the end of Quarter One was £4,557k. 
 

 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 

4.2 The forecast position for expenditure as of 30th June 2021 was a variance to 
Budget of £2.7m. The table below details expenditure and forecast by service 
area. 

  
 
Table 1.1 Hart DC – Revenue Budget Comparators – 2021/22 (June – Period 3) 
before Covid and Grant adjustments. 
 

Service Area 
Original Full 
Year Budget 

2021/22 

Q1 
Budgeted 

Expenditure  

Actual Q1 
Expenditure  

Over/Under  
Full Year 
Forecast 
2021/22. 

FY Forecast 
v FY Budget 

2021/22 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Corporate £2,992 £1,802 £924 -£878 £4,182 £1,190 

Community  £2,530 £374 £43 -£331 £2,060 -£470 

Technical and 
Environmental  

£4,354 £882 -£230 -£1,112 £4,387 £33 

Place  £2,427 £824 £296 -£528 £2,459 £32 

Accounting 
Treatment 

-£1,509 £675 £815 £140 -£1,518 -£9 

 
Total 

£10,794 £4,557 £1,848 -£2,709 £11,570 £776 

 
4.3 Method of Quarterly Accounting 

 
Historically, the Council has not accounted for accruals and prepayments from 
month to month, this contributes to large swings in expenditure particularly in 
the earlier quarters of the year. The Section 151 Officer will be implementing 
full quarterly accruals accounting from December 2021 with increased accruals 
accounting taking place at the end of September 2021. This will allow more 
accurate accounting and forecasting as part of the Quarterly Budget Monitoring 
exercise. 

  

4.4 Significant Variances Corporate 
 
Corporate Services is forecasting an overspend at year end of £1.2m. This is 
largely due to uncertainty around income on the Leisure contract. A separate 
report on this will be brought to Cabinet when more information is available. 
 
However, the underspend in Q1 is largely attributable to no invoices being 
received from South & Vale Councils for the recharge of Capita services; this is 
the reason why the forecast for the full year does not reflect this underspend. 
The value of invoices not yet received, is £1,096K.  
 

Page 13



 

There is also a risk of overspend on IT software licences as the organisation 
moves to a Software as a Solution (SAAS) payment for software licences and 
Office 365 Tenancy back up. This will be reviewed and reported within the 
Quarter Two Budget Monitoring. 
 
With exception of the above, no significant variances against profiled budget 
are reported. 

  

4.5 Significant Variances Community Services 

 In Community Services, expenditure for the service is on schedule with profiled 
budget with exception of one key area where £373K of domestic violence 
partnership payments have not yet being invoiced. 
 

4.6 Significant Variances Place Services 
 
The total variance on place services is a £528k underspend for Q1. The key 
factors contributing to this variance are shown below. They stem largely from 
invoices not being received from partnership suppliers, salary underspends 
and additional planning income: 
 

 Planning Income of £191K more than profiled budget 
 

 Neighbourhood Plan funding carried forward of £47K not yet utilised for 
referenda. 

 

 Invoices not received from Rushmoor for Building Control services of 
£137K 

 

 Invoices not yet received from Basingstoke and Deane Council relating to 
licensing for £31K. 

 

 Rental Income of £32K which needs to be moved across to 
Commercialisation. 

 

 Salary underspends in planning of approximately £30K although this is 
expected to be balanced somewhat by agency payments in future months. 

 

 Invoices not yet received for software of £25K. 
 
A request has been made by the Section 151 Officer to the officers managing 
the Place Budgets that profiling will need to be reviewed for the remaining 
three quarters of the year for both income and expenditure. 

  

Page 14



 

4.7 Significant Variances Environment and Technical Services 
 
There is a Q1 underspend on Environment and Technical Services of £1.112K 
which is wholly due to timing differences on invoices and invoices not being 
received from Basingstoke and Deane Council. This is made up of;  

 waste contract £471K,  

 street cleaning £156K,  

 green sacks £394K and  

 Grounds Maintenance £107K.  
 

The Section 151 Officer has requested that the waste budget is reviewed to 
ensure that it is fully updated to consider how the waste contract will be 
accounted for in future 
 

5 MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

5.1 The monthly budget monitoring process examines all income and expenditure 
against budgets in order that significant variances are highlighted immediately 
and to identify areas where expenditure is being incurred but where insufficient 
or no budgetary provision exists. This allows officers to take corrective action 
to maintain overall expenditure within budgets. 
 

5.2 The review of profiling and introduction of quarterly accruals will improve the 
accuracy and intelligence of quarterly budget monitoring information. There is 
also work to do with all key partners to ensure that invoices are raised on a 
prompt basis. 
 

6 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION 
 

6.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 17 August supported the 
intention to implement a quarterly accruals focus from December 2021 with 
increased accruals starting from September, as a new way of displaying 
information for the council. Members discussed included the Corporate 
Services forecast of £1,19 million overspend on the Leisure Contract and any 
income protection the council is entitled to. 
 

7 CONCLUSION 
 

7.1 COVID-19 continues to influence Leisure income due to the Extended 
Restrictions put in place. Implementation of Quarterly accruals and improved 
profiling will improve the quality of future budget monitoring. 
 

 
 Contact Details: Emma Foy, email: emma.foy@Hart.gov.uk 

 

Page 15



 

 

CABINET 
 
DATE OF MEETING:  2nd SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: 2022/23 BUDGET & MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL 

STRATEGY UPDATE 
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor James Radley, Deputy Leader and Portfolio 

Holder for Finance and Assets 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider the emerging budget for 2022/23 and the draft Medium Term 

Financial Strategy (MTFS). 
 
2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 That the issues around the emerging budget for 2022/23 be discussed and 

level of savings required, noted 
 
2.2 The tier system for rating savings be agreed. 
 
2.3 The timetable for 2022/23 budget setting be discussed and agreed. 
 
2.4 The reserves policy in Section 6 be discussed and agreed. 
 
2.5 Level One savings identified in 8.2 be agreed and implemented through 

incorporated into future iteration of Medium-Term Financial Strategy. 
 
2.6 Agree the preparation of Business Cases for Level Two savings detailed in 8.3 

so that these savings can be considered in future by Cabinet. 
 
2.7 Agree the provision of £10K to enable the use of independent external 

consultants, where required, to enable assesmnt of the Level Two Business 
Cases. 

 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report sets the context for the future financial position for Hart District 

Council. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a statement on the 
council’s approach to the management of its financial resources to meet its 
Corporate Priorities. The MTFS also considers the appropriate level of 
reserves that the Council holds to mitigate current and longer-term risks. 

 
3.2 In February 2021, Council approved the budget for 2021-22 including an 

indicative forward forecast for future years. This forecast has been updated for 
recent investments and additional Minimum Revenue Provision because of 
internal and external borrowing incurred in Quarter 1 2021-22 to fund 
affordable homes and investment property.  

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



 

 

3.3 To renew understanding for Members; additional explanation and definitions 
have been provided for each line within the Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
within Section 4 of this report. The updated Medium-Term Financial Strategy is 
shown at 3.4. 

 
3.4  Updated Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 

£'000 Approved Revised Forecast Forecast 

  2021-22 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 
Net Service Budget 10,536 10,536 11,910 12,704 
SANG Expenditure 258 258    

Cost of Service 10,794 10,794 11,910 12,704 
Contractual Inflation  0 300 300 
MRP Growth 418 516 363 0 
Pressures/Savings 600 600 131 0 
New Homes Bonus -1,847 -1,847 -800 -500 
Other non-ringfenced 
grant -199 -199 -199 -199 

Net Expenditure 9,766 9,864 11,705 12,305 
       
Financed by:      
Council Tax  -7,487 -7,487 -7,487 
Council Tax Increase   -205 -410 
Business Rates 
Retained  -1,400 -1,440 -1,480 
Collection Fund - CT 
Surplus      
Collection Fund - 
NNDR Deficit      
S106 Receipts  -53 -53 -53 
SANG Receipts  -258 -258 -258 
Commercial Income  -783 -1,048 -1,048 
       

Total Financing   -9,981 -10,491 -10,736 
       

(Surplus)/Deficit   -117 1,214 1,569 

 
4 DETAILED DEFINITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
4.1 Net Service Budget 

Gross expenditure for a service, less directly related income. This is made up 
of the prior year figure with any pressures, MRP and inflationary growth added 
to it. 

 
4.2 SANG Expenditure 

SANG expenditure is revenue spend on our SANGs sites. Historically this was 
shown separately but is not incorporated into the net service budget. 

 
4.3 Cost of Service 
 Net Service Budget added to SANG expenditure. 
  

Page 17



 

 

4.4 Contractual Inflation 
Estimated inflation on the Waste and Capita contracts. These will be 
calculated in detail and applied on the next version of the MTFS reported in 
October. 

 
4.5 Minimum Revenue Provision Growth 

The minimum revenue provision (MRP) is the minimum amount that must be 
charged to an authority’s revenue account each year and set aside as a 
provision for debt repayment or other credit liabilities. 

 
4.6 Pressures / Savings 

This is the total of additional expenditure required by additional pressures or a 
reduction in expenditure due to savings. Current levels anticipated for 2022/23 
are made up of payments to Capita caused by a change in the allocation of 
costs. 

 
4.7 New Homes Bonus (NHB) 

NHB was an un-ringfenced grant linked to the delivery of additional housing. 
There is uncertainty as to whether this will continue into 2022/23; an 
estimation has nevertheless been made as to the level of funding that may 
possibly replace it. 

 
4.8 Other non-ringfenced grant 

This grant is a District Tier level specific grant first received in 2021-22. This is 
expected to be received again in 2022-23. 

 
4.9 Net Expenditure 
 Total service cost after New Homes Bonus and Other non-ringfenced grant. 
 
4.10 Council Tax 

This is the estimated Council Tax rate based on projected collection rates at 
Band D equivalent level. It is calculated by taking Council Tax across the Band 
D equivalent level of properties and multiplying it by the collection rate 

 
4.11 Council Tax Increase 

There is currently an assumption of a 2% Council Tax increase; additional 
income is stated in this line. 

 
4.12 Business Rates Retained 

This is the amount of Business Rates retained after payments have been 
made to Central Government.  

 
4.13 Collection Fund surplus / Deficit 

This is any surplus or deficit above what has been forecast to be received from 
Council Tax and Business Rates after the monetary amount has been shared 
between the preceptors. 

 
4.14  Section 106 receipts 

These are developer contributions towards the implementation and 
maintenance of infrastructure assets. 

  

Page 18



 

 

4.15 SANG receipts 
The contribution from the SANGS reserves pays for the SANG revenue 
expenditure. This is drawn down annually. 

 
4.16 Commercial Income 

Proceeds of commercial rental income. Hedge End is included in Net Service 
Budget, other schemes are shown in bottom line. 

 
4.17 Total Financing 
 Total Financing Income – total of cells above. 
 
4.18 Surplus/Deficit 
 Difference between Net Expenditure and Total Financing. 
 
5 SIGNIFICANT FACTORS AFFECTING THE BUDGET 
  
5.1 As reported in previous Medium Term Financial Strategies with the threatened 

removal of New Homes Bonus. The financial challenges for local authorities 
will continue indefinitely and there are several factors which make accurate 
medium-term financial forecasting problematic at this stage. This report 
outlines the issues that may have the most impact on the Council’s revenue 
budget.   

 
5.2 Local Government Settlement  
 It is expected that the Government will publish a one-year spending review in 

November 2021. The longer-term Spending Review is likely to be delayed.  
 
 Hart has not received a Revenue Support Grant (RSG) since 2017/18.  From 

2020/21 Hart was likely to have a negative grant whereby the Council would 
have to pay the Government at least £500,000 per annum. However, the 
Technical Consultation confirmed that the Government would continue to fund 
“negative RSG” until the end of 2021/22. It is unknown if this will continue 
beyond 2021/22. 

 
5.3 New Homes Bonus (NHB) 
 The Council relies heavily on funding from NHB.  NHB provided £1.847 million 

in 2021/22.  
 

HNB is due to end in 2021/22. It is not clear whether there will be a 
replacement, nor whether Hart would qualify for any future payments. The 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy assumes that there will be a replacement at 
a lower level of funding. 

 
5.4 National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
 The new system of 75% business rates retention was delayed until 2022/23 

and there is no current update on this implementation. It is too early to predict 
the exact consequences for the Council, but the new system is unlikely to lead 
to significant extra funding.  

  
5.5 Fair Funding Review 

The formulae the Government uses for calculating local government funding 
are still under review. Further funding from April 2022 could be significantly 

Page 19



 

 

affected by this review, however there is doubt over whether this could be 
implemented in time for 2022/23. 

 
5.6 Other Budget Pressures 
 
 The Council faces several other potential budget pressures such as: 

 Collection fund deficits on the NNDR account, particularly as the result of 
appeals and Covid-19. 

 Pay increase for staff as required by NJC. 

 Inflationary adjustments and indexation on major contracts. 

 Reductions of fees and charges income because of Covid-19 

 Impact of the National Waste Strategy 
 
6 RESERVES 
 
6.1 The Council is required to maintain a minimum level of General Fund 

Reserves that equates to approximately 10% of net expenditure (£1m in Hart’s 
case).  For the life of this strategy the reserve needs to be set at a minimum of 
£1.17m.   

 
6.2 The Section 151 Officer recommends that the above balance is increased in 

Hart’s case to take account of specific risk arising being loan repayments, New 
Homes Bonus, and Income from Garden Waste. The Section 151 Officer also 
recommends a temporary increase in General Fund due to risk of 
underperformance in income on the Leisure Contract. 

  
 The calculation of our recommended minimum level of reserves is therefore 

shown below: 
 

 2022-23 
£’000 

10% of Net Expenditure 1,170 

Garden waste income 900 

New Homes Bonus 1,847 

Leisure Contract  1,400 

Total 5,317 

 
  At the end of 2020/21 General Fund reserves were over £6.8m, more than the 

minimum level required, however, there are undoubtedly significant financial 
pressures to come in future years.   

 
7 COMMERCIAL STRATEGY 
 
7.1 The Council has already recognised the future funding risk and has 

successfully adopted a Commercial Strategy. This will deliver over £1.2m in 
additional income.  There is, however, a risk involved in this approach and 
whilst the Council has purchased two investment properties and developed 
affordable homes there are no guarantees that further profitable opportunities 
will be found 

 

Page 20



 

 

7.2 In addition, the Council will be taking on additional risks such as voids and the 
timing of acquisitions and construction. Factors such as the performance of 
the wider economy may impact on future income. 

 
8 IDENTIFIED SAVINGS 
 
8.1 A programme of potential savings has been identified. These are specifically 

intended to reduce the pressure on the Council’s annual revenue budget (i,e 
they are designed to be structural changes to the Council’s future revenue 
base budget). These savings have been risk rated and tiered according to 
several internal and external factors. 

 
8.2 Level One savings are those savings which will have limited impact on the vital 

services we provide to our residents and communities. These savings can also 
be delivered ‘at pace’ in line with the requirement for savings in the coming 
financial year with minimal political risk and minimum implementation risk. 

 
 Suggested Level One Savings are listed below: 
 

Year Description Estimated level of 
savings 
£’000 

21.1 Community – Use built up grant budgets to fund 
revenue spend for three years 

150 

21.2 Technical and Environmental - CCTV change of 
contract as approved by Cabinet captures savings 

70 

21.3 Civic Offices – Reduced cost on Hart Civic Offices 60 

21.4 Cross organisation – Capitalisation and recharge 55 

 Total 335 

 
8.3 Level Two savings are those that will need to be examined in more detail. 

Ultimately all may not be achievable but at present they present the best 
opportunities (beyond level one savings) to make the required structural 
savings to the annual revenue budget. In some cases, these may require 
support funding drawn from reserves to secure the longer-term structural 
change to the Council’ base revenue budget (i.e. the ‘spend to save’ principle) 

 
Suggested Level Two Savings are listed below: 
 

Year Description Estimated level of 
savings 
£’000 

21.5 Corporate – Corporate Services Restructure – 
bring services back from Mendip and restructure 

100 

21.6 Corporate – Review and revise skills and 
resources at Senior Management Team (net) 

90 

21.7 Corporate – Carry out a review of Member and 
Staff allowances 

100 

21.8 Corporate – Outsource of Internal Audit to one 
provider. 

60 

Page 21



 

 

Year Description Estimated level of 
savings 
£’000 

21.9 Place – Review and revise skills and resources 
and skills required in the future within Place 

40 

21.10 Technical and Environmental – Review and 
revise skills and resources required within 
Technical and Environmental Services 

35 

21.11 Place – Review and revise corporate Health and 
Safety functions 

15 

21.12 Technical and Environment – Review County 
Highways Agency contract 

27 

 Total Level 2 2022/23 savings provisionally 
identified  

467 

 
8.4 It is recommended that the Level One savings are agreed and incorporated 

into the MTFS without further review.  With respect to Level two savings, it is 
recommended that business cases are worked up on all Level two savings; 
with the outcome of those business cases presented to Cabinet in November 
for decision. 

 
8.5 Some of the Business Cases will require the use of external consultants to aid 

clear and independent evaluation.  This is especially important for the review 
of Senior Management and also the Member and Staff allowances which 
would benefit from external assessment and benchmarking. To allow for this, 
a provision of £10K is requested to help bring forward the Business Cases on 
this timeline 

 
8.6 It is unlikely that the Level One and Two savings identified within this report 

will sufficiently close the gap needed to meet a balanced budget for 
2022/2023. The extent of any potential budget ‘gap’ will depend upon tany 
announcement by the government in late autumn of the 2022/2023 settlement. 
Depending upon the settlement outcome a further report identifying potential 
Level Three savings will be presented to Cabinet in November 2021 for 
consideration.   

 
9 CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 This report was considered by Overview and Scrutiny on Tuesday 17th August 
 
9.2 Members discussions included: 

 Losing the New Homes Bonus and its implications.  

 The Commercial Income  

 The possibility of borrowing from other local authorities, SANGS or 
earmarked reserves.  

 Losing the Garden Waste income revenue, New Burdens funding and how 
much additional costs this scheme could incur. This has currently been 
identified as £900,000.  

 Members input and involvement in the programme of potential savings.  

 The possibility of using the council’s estate and assets more effectively and 
for financial gain. 

Page 22



 

 

 
9.3 In addition, the Portfolio Holder for Finance confirmed that workshops would 

be set up with members if required for Level Three savings. 
 
10 NEXT STEPS 
 
10.1 Level Two business cases will be presented to Cabinet in November alongside 

a further revised MTFS; updated for any funding information and detailed 
Council Tax data. Members will be invited to approve Level Two savings at 
this point. At this meeting a list of potential Level Three savings may also be 
presented for a decision on which areas which be shortlisted to be worked up 
into a further set of business cases. 

 
10.3 It is anticipated that final funding information from Government will be received 

in December 2021. A report will be presented to Cabinet in January which will 
requests approval, in the event of it being necessary, of Level Three savings 
and incorporation of these savings into the 2022/23 budget process.  

 
10.4 As part of the report to Cabinet in January; the MTFS will be extended to a 

period of ten years into the future as recommended by the CIPFA Code of 
Financial Management. 

 
 
Contact Details:       Emma Foy, email: Emma.Foy@hart.gov.uk  

Page 23



  

CABINET 
 
DATE OF MEETING: 2 SEPTEMBER 2021 
  
TITLE OF REPORT: STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
  
Report of:  Head of Place 
  
Cabinet Portfolio Cllr Graham Cockarill, Place 
  

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 To update the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) in 

respect of consultation procedures for planning applications and various 
updates in relation to planning policy. 

  
2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Cabinet: 
2.1 Adopts the updated Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) as set out at 

Appendix A, and 
  
2.2 Authorises the Head of Place in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 

Place to make any minor alterations and corrections to the SCI if required 
prior to publication on the Council’s website. 

  
3 BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 specifies that a local 

planning authority should prepare a Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI), this being the authority’s policy of how they will involve stakeholders 
and the wider community in planning matters, in both the planning policy and 
planning application processes. 

  

3.2 There is now a requirement for local planning authorities to review their SCI’s 
at least once every 5 years, to ensure that their content remains relevant and 
effective. 

  
3.3 The first SCI was published by the Council in 2006, this was updated in July 

2014 and Appendix D (the planning application publicity process) amended in 
April 2017. 

  
3.4 The Peer Review of the Development Management service in 2019 made 

some recommendations relating to publicity and consultation for planning 
applications (see Appendix B for extract of this report).  These are included in 
the Development Management Service Action Plan agreed by Cabinet in 
December 2020. 

  
3.5 Further changes were made to the SCI in 2020 relating to the planning 

application publicity process (Appendix D) in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic.  The changes reduced the posting of site notices to the statutory 
minimum.  This was also in line with the recommendations of the Peer 

Page 24

Agenda Item 8



  

Review.  These were agreed by Planning (Action) Sub-Committee on 4 May 
2020. 

  
4 CONSIDERATIONS 
  
4.1 The Development Management Service Action Plan includes the following 

actions: 

 Adopt a 3 week consultation period for Parishes, with flexibility in 
certain cases (number 15); and  

 Cease posting site notices except required by statute (number 16). 
  
4.2 As referred to earlier, the SCI was amended last year in response to Covid-

19 restrictions where site notices were not posted unless required by law.  
This has proved to be a more effective use of officers time in not having to 
visit the site specifically for this purpose and the revised SCI retains this 
approach. 

  
4.3 A further change is to revert to a 21-day consultation period for planning 

applications.  This avoids the process being slowed down and delaying 
decision making whereby making the service more effective and efficient. 

  
4.4 While updating the SCI to reflect the recommendations of the Peer Review 

and the subsequent Development Management Service Action Plan the SCI 
has also updated references in relation to the planning policy section.  These 
revisions include various updates to legislation and other references. 

  
4.5 The SCI document has been expanded to provide more details and includes 

the following key changes: 
 

 References to National Planning Policy; 

 References to Duty to Co-operate (plan making); 

 References to Corporate Equalities Policy and Data Protection; and 

 Expanded section on planning application process (previously only 
covered in an Appendix). 

  
4.6 It is not a requirement to consult on the SCI and given this is only an update it 

is not considered necessary this time.  The changes proposed to the DM 
elements have evolved following discussions with stakeholders through the 
Peer Review.  The remainder of the document has been refreshed and whilst 
the layout and structure differ to that adopted in 2014 version, the content 
reflects the original document has been expanded to reflect current practices. 

  
4.7 It is intended to fully review the SCI when any significant changes to the 

planning system are announced pending the outcome of the White Paper 
‘Planning for the Future’, which suggested fundamental reforms in local plan 
preparation and community engagement. 

  
5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
  
5.1 It is a legal requirement to have an up-to-date SCI.  The revisions proposed 

reflect changes that have already been made in response to the pandemic 

Page 25



  

situation and to provide clarity how we will involve the community in various 
aspects of planning processes, both plan making and decision making.  

  
6 RELEVANCE TO THE CORPORATE PLAN AND/OR THE HART VISION 

2040 
  
6.1 The SCI is a key tool to assist the planning service be an inclusive and 

engaging service as required by the 2040 Vision and falls under the Effective 
and Efficient Council priority of the current Corporate Plan. 

  
6.2  More specifically the Corporate Plan refers to ‘supporting local communities 

to have a say in the future of their area’, the mechanisms set out in the SCI 
facilitate this to happen in relation to planning functions.   

  
7 SERVICE PLAN 

 

Is the proposal identified in the Service Plan? Yes 

Is the proposal being funded from current budgets? Yes 

Have staffing resources already been identified and set aside for this 
proposal?  

Yes 

  

  
8 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 Once finalised the revised SCI will be published on the Council’s website. 

There are no specific financial or resource implications from the preparation 
of the document itself. 

  
8.2  There is a potential cost saving in officers not visiting sites to put up non 

statutory notices. 
  
9 EQUALITIES 

  
9.1 Given the nature of the SCI an Equalities Impact Assessment has been 

carried out, this is set out at Appendix C. The SCI is expressed in broad 
terms and provides flexibility to be able to adjust consultation requirements to 
ensure access to processes is as wide as possible. 

  
9.2  When assessed against the categories of protected characteristics the SCI 

itself makes no specific reference to certain groups, its purpose is to reach as 
many people as possible, consequently the impacts are recorded as 
neutral/positive. 

  
10 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 The revised publicity arrangements for planning applications will result in less 

car trips and hence less carbon emissions and be a more efficient use of 
officer’s time.  Use of digital tools for publicity across the service will also be 
more environmentally efficient. 

  
11 ACTION 
  
11.1 Cabinet is requested to adopt the revised SCI. 
  

Page 26



  

 
Contact Details: 
Jenny Wood, Principal Planner jenny.wood@hart.gov.uk 
Steph Baker, Development Management & Building Control Manager 
stephanie.baker@hart.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
EXTRACT FROM DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PEER 
REVIEW 2019  

Appendix 2 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT UPDATE 2021  

Appendix 3 EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

 
  

Page 27

mailto:jenny.wood@hart.gov.uk
mailto:stephanie.baker@hart.gov.uk


  

Appendix 1 
 
Extract from Development Management Peer Review 2019  

 
  

Parish/Town council consultations   
8.23 Hart has a significant number of parish and town councils; all of 
which are fairly active and respond regularly to consultations regarding 
applications. Currently Hart allows parishes 28 days to respond to 
consultations. This is seven days longer than is the case elsewhere in 
England and has apparently been driven to allow comments from a few 
smaller parishes who do not meet more than once a month. In practice 
the number of applications in these parishes is very small yet catering for 
them has a direct impact on the authority’s overall ability to process all its 
applications expeditiously. It effectively reduces the post consultation 
time to determine all applications within the 8-week statutory deadline 
from 5 weeks to 4.  
  
8.24 This is not a sensible arrangement. The authority should adopt a 3-
week consultation, in line with every other LPA, and allow flexibility for 
those few applications in Parishes where the situation occurs.   
  
Site Notices   
8.25 The Review Team heard that site notices are now posted by the 
Case Officer for all applications. This arrangement was introduced when 
the Authority stopped the practice of issuing neighbour notification 
letters. This resulted in complaints to the Council, and neighbour 
notification letters were re-instated, but the practice of posting site 
notices was continued. Applications are also advertised in local papers 
and posted on the website. The Review Team considered that using 
case officers to post site notices is not an effective use of their time and 
bearing in mind even without them the Council would be exceeding its 
statutory responsibilities in this respect, the practice should be 
terminated.  
  

  

Page 28



  

 

 

 

 

Statement of Community Involvement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted [September 2021] 

 

  

Appendix 2 

Page 29



  

Contents  

1. Introduction  

 

2. Context  

 

3. Development Plan Documents (Local Plan) 

 

4. Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

5. Neighbourhood plans  

 

6. Planning Applications  

 

Appendix A  Statutory Consultees, Key Stakeholders and Duty to Co-operate Bodies 

Appendix B Consultation Procedures for Hart’s Development Plan Documents 

Appendix C Consultation Procedures for Hart’s Supplementary Planning 

Documents  

Appendix D Steps in Preparing a Neighbourhood Plan in Hart 

Appendix E Consultation Procedures for Planning Applications  

Appendix F Commenting on Planning Applications  

Appendix G Library, Parish and Town Council contact details  

 

 

  

Page 30



  

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

What is the Statement of Community Involvement? 

1.1 It is a statutory requirement that the Council prepares and maintains a 

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)1. The SCI formally sets out how 

the Council will involve local communities, business and other stakeholders in 

local planning decisions primarily the local plan and planning applications.   

1.2 The SCI was originally adopted in 2006, updated in 2011 and 2014, with 

Appendix D updated in 2017.  Some further temporary changes were 

introduced in 2020 to reflect restrictions imposed during the coronavirus 

pandemic.  

1.3 This 2021 revision introduces some changes to the consultation processes for 

planning applications. It also includes some edits to the plan-making sections 

to update and simplify the document, with references to Equality principles 

under the Equality Act 2010 and how we use your data under the General 

Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018.  

1.4  The information contained in this document can be made available in 

alternative formats.  Please contact us for more information at 

planningpolicy@hart.gov.uk 

 

2.0  CONTEXT - Why do we do it? 

2.1 National planning policy places considerable emphasis on encouraging early 

community involvement, stating that plans should be shaped by early, 

proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers and 

communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and 

operators and statutory consultees2. It also encourages community 

engagement before planning applications are submitted stating that good 

quality pre-application discussion enables better co-ordination between public 

and private resources and improved outcomes for the community.3 

2.2 To assist with this process, the SCI has been prepared to explain clearly: 

 how the community will be involved 

 the stages at which that involvement will take place 

 the methods to be used in that involvement, and 

 a commitment to feedback the outcome of engagement with the 

community. 

2.3 We will commit to taking full account of the views expressed by the public, 

consultees, District Councillors, and Parish and Town Councils. However, 

planning decisions must be: 

                                            
1 Under Section 18 of the Planning and Compensation Act 2004, as amended by the Planning Act 2008, the   
Localism Act 2011, and the Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017. 
2 National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021 – para. 16  
3 National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021 – para. 39 
 

Page 31

mailto:planningpolicy@hart.gov.uk


  

 made within legal requirements 

 in accordance with national planning policy and guidance, and 

 based on sound, technical evidence.  

 

Community Involvement principles – equalities  

2.4 The Council needs to ensure that it meets the public sector equality duty 

(Equality Act 2010), which aims to promote equality, eliminate discrimination 

and encourage good relations between different groups associated with age, 

disability, gender/gender reassignment, race, religion and other protected 

characteristics. We have a Corporate Equalities Policy4, which will be followed 

in all consultations carried out by the Council 

2.5 We will use a variety of methods to reach as many people as possible 

including making best use of digital channels and social media, which may be 

preferred by some groups. In some cases hard copies of documents will also 

be available at district, town and parish council offices and in local libraries. 

Information in alternative languages and formats can be provided on request 

where there is considered to be a genuine need, so as to be accessible to all 

sections of the community. 

 

Data Protection -  How will we protect your information? 

2.6 To allow us to register comments on local plan documents and planning 

applications, we do record your contact details on the Local Plan and planning 

application database, which allows us to respond to the comments you have 

made. There are also statutory requirements we must meet in making copies 

of comments publicly available. We will therefore publish names and 

associated representations on our website but we will not publish any further 

personal information such as telephone numbers or email addresses, in 

accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the 

Data Protection Act 2018,  

2.7 We will not use your personal data for any purpose other than set out when 

collected without first obtaining your consent. We will only share your personal 

information with third parties where required by law. The information relating to 

planning policy documents will only be retained until the relevant document 

has been adopted and any period for legal challenge has passed. If a legal 

challenge is made, it will be retained until the outcome is known. For planning 

applications, your comments and details will be retained permanently.  

2.8 Hart District Council has a privacy policy which can be viewed at 

https://www.hart.gov.uk/privacy.  

                                            
4 Hart District Council – Corporate Equalities Policy – April 2021 

Page 32

https://www.hart.gov.uk/privacy


  

3. DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS (LOCAL PLAN) 

 What is the Local Plan and how is the community involved? 

 

3.1 Development Plan Documents (usually a Local Plan) are the main planning 

policy documents prepared by the Council.  They set out a vision, objectives, 

strategy and policies to guide future development. 

3.2 The most recent DPD in Hart is the Hart Local Plan (Strategy and Sites) 2032 

adopted in April 2020.  Local Plans must be regularly reviewed and updated 

when necessary. 

3.3 Planning legislation requires local planning authorities preparing local plans to 

consult and notify ‘specific consultation bodies,’ ‘general consultation bodies,’ 

and residents or other such persons carrying out business in the area that the 

Council considers it appropriate to invite representations from.  The ‘specific’ 

and ‘general’ consultation bodies are listed in Appendix A. 

3.4 Any interested parties not listed under the ‘specific’ or ‘general’ consultation 

bodies can request to be added to the Council’s Local Plan mailing list.  They 

will then be notified when a document is available for consultation or is 

adopted.  To be included on the mailing list, please contact 

planningpolicy@hart.gov.uk 

3.5 Plan-making involves a process that includes at least two consultations. 

Appendix B sets out the key stages and the Council’s approach to consultation 

at those stages.  At each stage of community engagement, any comments we 

receive will be analysed and taken into account, this feedback will be given 

through publication on the Council’s website, issuing press releases and 

statements, and copies will be available to view at the Council Offices. 

Duty to cooperate 

3.6 We also have a legal duty to cooperate5 with neighbouring authorities and 

other prescribed authorities and agencies when plan-making.  This means 

working ‘constructively, actively and on an on-going basis’ on strategic issues 

having a significant impact on at least two planning areas. The duty to co-

operate bodies are set out at the end of Appendix A.   

How does Sustainability Appraisal/Strategic Environmental 

Assessment/Habitat Regulations Assessment fit into the process?  

3.7  All DPDs are subject to Sustainability Appraisal (SA), but SA is not required 

for SPDs, it is optional.  An SA considers how the principles of sustainable 

development have been taken into account in the development of the 

document being appraised. 

3.8 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) and Habitats Regulation 

Assessment (HRA) are also required by an EU Directive which is now 

transposed into UK legislation, on the assessment of the effects of certain 

                                            
5 Localism Act 2011 and Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

Page 33

mailto:planningpolicy@hart.gov.uk


  

plans and programmes on the environment.  Plans and programmes with the 

potential to have significant environmental effects (positive or negative) are 

required to undergo SEA.  All DPDs are subject to SEA, whilst SPDs and 

Neighbourhood Plans that have the potential for significant environmental 

effects may therefore be subject to SEA.  

3.9 The HRA screening process will consider if there are potential impacts arising 

as from a plan are likely to have significant effect on any sites designated for 

their nature conservation importance, either alone or in combination with other 

plans and projects. If potential impacts are identified then this will trigger the 

need for a more detailed Appropriate Assessment. 

3.10 Consultation is required with specific organisations for five weeks on the 

SA/SEA/HRA, although all the documents are published alongside emerging 

DPD’s, for comment. 

 

4. SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS 

 

What are Supplementary Planning Documents and how can you be 

involved? 

4.1 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) provide additional guidance from 

the Council support specific policies in the Local Plan. SPDs do not set new 

policy or allocate land.  

4.2 SPDs are not part of the Development Plan for the District but support Local 

Plan policies with more detail and they are a material consideration in 

determining planning applications.  The process is initially similar to preparing 

a DPD, but because they expand on existing policy, they are not subject to 

independent examination. 

4.3 As with Local Plans, there are certain required stages of consultation set out in 

the regulations that we must follow.  These are set out in Appendix C. 

 

5. NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANS 

How we will help communities prepare Neighbourhood Plans? 

5.1 Neighbourhood planning was introduced through the Localism Act 2011 and 

allows communities to take the lead on shaping how their local area is 

developed.  Neighbourhood Plans are not prepared by the District Council but 

by Parish or Town Councils, Neighbourhood Forums or community 

organisations that meet the criteria for qualifying bodies, and they set out 

policies for the development and use of land in a local area or neighbourhood. 

5.2 Neighbourhood Plans are important and sit alongside the Local Plan in being 

the starting point for determining planning applications.  They cannot promote 

less development than the Local Plan and cannot alter past planning 

decisions.  They should support the delivery of the strategic policies contained 

in local plans and should shape and direct development that is not covered by 

the strategic policies.  All policies in the Neighbourhood Plan must conform 

Page 34



  

with national planning policies and the up-to-date Local Plan.  Once they are 

adopted or “made”, Neighbourhood Plans form part of the development plan 

for the area they cover.  

5.3  Neighbourhood Plans must follow legal requirements for consultation and 

engagement, which in the early stages is the responsibility of the Parish or 

Town Council, whilst the District Council will carry out consultation on the final 

draft version, arranges the independent examination and organises the 

referendum of the local community. 

5.4 We are required to actively help communities in the process of preparing 

Neighbourhood Plans, but the plan-making process itself must be community 

led.  We have produced guidance setting out in more detail the support that 

the District Council will give to local communities preparing neighbourhood 

plans.  This, along with links to other supporting information, can be found at 

https://www.hart.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning 

5.5 The steps required in preparing a Neighbourhood Plan are set out in Appendix 

D. 

 

  

Page 35

https://www.hart.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning


  

 

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

How will we consult on planning applications and take the communities’ 

views into account? 

6.1  When we receive a valid planning application, we have a duty to consider and 

determine it, regardless of whether it meets adopted policies or not.  We are 

committed to consulting with those we feel are likely to be most affected by the 

proposal, and take their views into account, before reaching a decision on the 

application.  However, it needs to be understood that planning decisions are 

not a matter of free choice.  They must be made within legal requirements, 

have regard to national planning policy and guidance, and be based on sound, 

technical evidence. 

6.2 We will consult in accordance with the statutory requirements of the relevant 

legislation6. We will always  

 consult with the Parish or Town Council; 

 notify immediately adjoining neighbours; 

 consult with statutory bodies as appropriate; and 

 for some applications, advertise in a local newspaper or on 

social media. 

6.3 Site notices may be displayed for certain applications.  Planning applications 

that would be a “departure” from the Development Plan (in other words, do not 

appear to comply with policies in the Plan) will always be advertised in a local 

newspaper and with a site notice.  All new planning applications are 

advertised in a Weekly List placed on the Council’s website, and residents can 

register to be notified of planning applications in their locality.  The procedures 

we follow in consulting on planning applications are set out in Appendix E. 

6.4 Following an initial site visit, we may decide that wider neighbour notification 

may be appropriate, given the nature of the site and/or the proposed 

development. Neighbours and Parish/Town Councils are given 21 days to 

respond if they wish to comment on a planning application.  This may be 

shorter on subsequent notifications of amended plans.  Comments on a 

planning application may be made by anyone, regardless of whether they 

have been notified or live locally.  Comments can be in support of, or objection 

to a proposal but must address material planning considerations, if the Council 

is to take them into account in making its decision.  A list of material planning 

considerations can be found at Appendix F. 

6.5 Comments on planning applications should be submitted to the Council as 

soon as possible, although we will take into account any representations 

received by the point of the decision being made.  All those making comments 

on planning applications should be aware that they will be made available for 

public inspection on our website and at the Civic Offices, and comments 

cannot be treated as confidential. 

                                            
6 Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

Page 36



  

6.6 Occasionally, it may be necessary to prepare and publish reports on planning 

applications for the Planning Committee before the notification period has 

expired.  In these circumstances, comments received post-publication will be 

reported verbally to Committee (and referred to in an Addendum note to the 

Committee report) and taken into account in the decision-making process. 

6.7 We will also consult with relevant non-statutory bodies and organisations, 

such as local business and amenity groups.  In addition, where a major 

application has likely implications for a strategic service provider, such as 

Health Service providers, we will consult these at an early stage. 

6.8 Some types of development have permission granted automatically under 

national legislation and therefore do not require a planning application to be 

submitted.  These can include certain types of household extensions, some 

changes of use of land or buildings and minor operations.  These are 

generally referred to as “permitted development”, and further information can 

be found at www.planningportal.co.uk 

 Decisions on Planning Applications 

6.9 Like other Councils, most planning applications in Hart are determined by the 

head of the planning service (Head of Place) under powers delegated by the 

Council as set out in the Council’s Constitution7, following full consideration of 

all the planning issues and comments received through the consultation 

process.  

6.10 Decisions on the more complex and controversial planning applications will be 

determined by the Council’s Planning Committee or Major Sites Sub-

Committee, along with those applications requested for committee 

determination by a local Ward Councillor (subject to the provisions of the 

scheme of delegation 8).  Public speaking will be permitted at Planning 

Committee for those who wish to speak in support or object to a planning 

application, provided that this is arranged beforehand in accordance with the 

approved procedure.8  Public speaking will take place ahead of the 

determination of the planning application. 

6.11 There is also the opportunity for Parish or Town Councils to speak at the 

Committee on planning applications within their respective boundaries.   In the 

event that a planning application is to be determined by the Planning 

Committee, all those who have made representations on the application will 

be notified ahead of the proceedings. 

Pre-Application Stage 

                                            
7 Hart District Council – Part 3c of the Constitution - Scheme of Delegation on Planning Applications  
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Corporate_po
licies/Constitution.pdf 
8 Hart District Council – Public Speaking at Planning Committee - 
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Council_meetings/Public%20speaking%20at%20Pl
anning%20Committee.pdf 

Page 37

http://www.planningportal.co.uk/
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Corporate_policies/Constitution.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Corporate_policies/Constitution.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Council_meetings/Public%20speaking%20at%20Planning%20Committee.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Council_meetings/Public%20speaking%20at%20Planning%20Committee.pdf


  

6.12 In line with good practice, we offer applicants a pre-application advice service.9  

The advantage of this service is to highlight potential issues and resolve 

problems before an application is submitted, resulting in a more efficient use of 

resources, and faster decision-making. Pre-application submissions and our 

response to them will be available for public inspection, unless the Council 

considers such information as commercially sensitive. 

6.13 As part of this process, we encourage all applicants and developers to discuss 

their proposals with their neighbours and the local community before 

submitting their formal application.  This will not affect the statutory 

notifications which take place on receipt of a planning application, but early 

engagement with the community may reduce delay, and allows the applicant 

to demonstrate how the proposal has taken local views into account. 

6.14 The level of community engagement should reflect the scale of the proposed 

development.  Since we must remain impartial ahead of determining the 

planning application, the Council will not be involved with any engagement 

with the community by the applicant.  We can only request potential applicants 

to involve the local community at the pre-application stage, not require them 

to.  Moreover, we cannot refuse planning permission merely because an 

applicant did not engage with the community before submission. 

 

  

                                            
9 Hart District Council – Pre-application Advice Service - 
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Planning_for_businesses/preapplication%20advice%
20protocol.pdf 
 

Page 38

https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Planning_for_businesses/preapplication%20advice%20protocol.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Planning_for_businesses/preapplication%20advice%20protocol.pdf


  

APPENDIX A:  

Statutory Consultees, Key Stakeholders and Duty to Co-operate Bodies 

When preparing local development documents, the Council must consider whether 
any of certain ‘specific’ and ‘general consultation bodies’ (as defined in legislation) 
may have an interest in the subject matter of the document and should therefore be 
consulted. 
 
For Hart, the relevant ‘specific consultation bodies’ are: 
 

 The Coal Authority 

 The Environment Agency 

 Historic England 

 The Highways Agency 

 Homes England 

 Natural England 

 Adjoining Local Planning Authorities 

 Town and Parish Councils within Hart District as well as those adjoining the 

district 

 Hampshire County Council 

 Hampshire Police Authority 

 NHS England 

 Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) 

 Network Rail 

 Surrey County Council  

 Relevant service providers (gas, electric, sewerage and water)  

 Relevant telecommunications providers or those who own or control electronic 

communications apparatus located within Hart District 
 

 
The relevant ‘general’ consultation bodies in Hart include the following: 
(This list may vary depending on the content of the Local Development Document 
being consulted upon.) 
 

 Amenity groups (including the Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings, 

the Georgian Group, the Victorian Society and the Twentieth Century Society) 

 Civic Societies 

 Community groups and residents associations 

 Countryside / Conservation groups 

 Development and property owning interests 

 Disability groups 

 Ethnic minority groups (to include the National Federation of Gypsy Liaison 

Groups) 

 Health groups and organisations 

 Housing interest groups and Housing Associations 

 Local business groups 

 Older persons groups 

 Educational organisations 

Page 39



  

 Sport and recreation bodies and organisations 

 Other groups / individuals (to include the residents of Hart District) 

 Parish Plan groups 

 Religious groups 

 Surrey and Hampshire Canal Society 

 The Theatres Trust 

 Youth groups 

 The Crown Estate 

 South Western Railway 

 
Duty to Co-operate Bodies 
 
The following are the bodies which the Council has a statutory duty to co-operate 
with, as appropriate, depending on the issues under consideration: 
 

 Neighbouring local authorities and County Councils 

 Environment Agency 

 Historic England 

 Natural England 

 The Mayor of London 

 Civil Aviation Authority 

 Homes England 

 NHS England 

 Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) 

 National Health Service Commissioning Board 

 Office of the Rail Regulator 

 Hampshire County Council as highway authority  

 Highways Agency 

 Enterprise M3 Local Enterprise Partnership 

 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Local Nature Partnership 

 
 
  

Page 40



  

APPENDIX B: 

Consultation Procedures for Hart’s Development Plan Documents 

 

Preparation Stage Statutory Requirement for 
Consultation and 
Notification  

Options for Additional 
Community Engagement 

Evidence gathering 
 
Sustainability Appraisal 
/Strategic Environmental 
Assessment/Habitats 
Regulation Assessment 
(SA/SEA/HRA)  

 
 
Natural England, Historic 
England and Environment 
Agency are consulted for 5 
weeks 

Involvement of other 
stakeholders as appropriate 
may take place 

Public participation in the 
preparation of a 
development 
plan document and 
SA/SEA/HRA  
 
 

 Specific and general 
consultation bodies 
(as appropriate) are 
notified and invited 
to comment on what 
the document ought 
to contain. 

 Consider whether to 
invite comments 
from local residents 
or businesses 

 For SA/SEA/HRA, 
consultation will 
include Natural 
England, Historic 
England and 
Environment Agency 
together with other 
appropriate key 
stakeholders  

 Consider any 
representations 
received 

 Place details of 
consultation on 
Council website 

 Place details of 
consultation in 
libraries and parish 
council offices 

 Consult stakeholders 
and those who have 
requested to be 
consulted (on the 
Local Plan database) 

 Consider 
engagement with 
community forums 

 Consider holding 
public exhibitions 

 Consider whether to 
consult on policy 
options in the 
document 

Publication of a 
development plan document 
and SA/SEA/HRA 
 
 

 Make proposed 
submission 
documents available 
for inspection at 
appropriate places 
and on the Council’s 
website 

 Advise each of the 
specific and general 
consultation bodies 
invited to comment 
during public 
participation that the 
proposed 
submission 
documents are 
available for 
inspection and 

 Issue press release 
announcing 
proposed 
submission 
documents 
consultation exercise 

 Publish on the 
Council website a 
summary of 
representations 
received at the 
public participation 
stage. 

 Inform those who 
have requested to be 
kept up to date (on 
the Local Plan 
database) 

Page 41



  

Preparation Stage Statutory Requirement for 
Consultation and 
Notification  

Options for Additional 
Community Engagement 

where and when 
they can be viewed. 
 

 Anyone may make 
representations 
during the 
consultation period 
which must be for at 
least 6 weeks from 
the date the 
availability notice is 
published 

 Publish on the 
Council website a 
summary of the main 
issues raised from 
representations 
received. 
Representations will 
be available to view 
on the Council’s 
website 

 For SA, consultation 
will take place on the 
Sustainability 
Appraisal report in 
the same way as 
above. This will 
include appropriate 
bodies 

Public examination 
 
 
 

At least 6 weeks before the 
examination starts: 

 Publish details of 
venue and date on 
website 

 Notify people who 
made 
representations of 
those details 

 For SA, significant 
changes resulting 
from representations 
would be appraised 
at the examination 

 No community 
engagement takes 
place at this stage 

 Issue press release 
announcing details 
of the public 
examination 

Adoption 
 
 
 
 

 Make adopted 
document, plus 
SA/SEA/HRA 
adoption statement 
available for 
inspection 

 Notify anyone who 
requested to be 
notified of adoption 

 No community 
engagement takes 
place at this stage 

 Issue press release 
announcing adoption 

Page 42



  

Preparation Stage Statutory Requirement for 
Consultation and 
Notification  

Options for Additional 
Community Engagement 

 Send the adoption 
statement to the 
Secretary of State 

   

 

 

  

Page 43



  

APPENDIX C: 

Consultation Procedures for Hart’s Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

Preparation Stage 
 
 

Statutory Requirement for 
Consultation and 
Notification 

Options for Additional 
Community Engagement 

Evidence gathering  
- where SA or SEA are 
carried out, evidence 
gathering will be completed 
 

SA/SEA Scoping Report will 
be consulted upon for a 
minimum of 5 weeks. 

 

Public participation  
and, if SA/SEA is carried 
out, then reports will be 
completed 
 
 

 Make document 
available for 
inspection including 
on the Council’s 
website. Anyone 
may make a 
representation. The 
representation 
period must be no 
less than 4 weeks 

 Consider any 
representations 
received 

 For SA, consultation 
will include: Natural 
England, Historic 
England and the 
Environment Agency 
together with other 
appropriate key 
stakeholders 

Issue press release 
announcing 
public participation exercise 

Adoption  
Adoption statement for 
SA/SEA purposes  
 
 
 
 

 Adopted document, 
adoption statement 
& statement of 
representations 
made available for 
inspection including 
on the website 

 Notify anyone who 
requested to be 
notified of adoption 

 No community 
engagement takes 
place at this stage 

 Issue press released 
announcing adoption 

   

 

 

APPENDIX D: 

Steps in Preparing a Neighbourhood Plan in Hart 

See Hart District Council Neighbourhood Planning web pages for guidance notes and 
support available; https://www.hart.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning 

Page 44

https://www.hart.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning


  

Stage What the Council will do 

Designation as a 
Neighbourhood Area / or 
Neighbourhood Forum 

 Advise as to the information required to submit an 
application for designation as a Neighbourhood 
Area or Neighbourhood Forum;  

 Carry out consultation to bring to attention of those 
who live, work or carry out business in the relevant 
area 

 Invite representations in a period of no less than 6 
weeks; 

 Determine the outcome of the application and 
advise the Qualifying Body accordingly and publish 
the decision on the website. 

Evidence to support the 
neighbourhood plan  

 

 Advise on evidence available to support the Local 
Plan and other planning documents and sources of 
information which may be relevant to the 
neighbourhood plans  

Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) and 
Habitat Regulation 
Assessment (HRA) 

 Undertake an SEA and HRA Screening for the 
neighbourhood plan. If full assessments are 
required this is the responsibility of the Qualifying 
body. 

Pre-submission preparation 
and consultation 

 
 
 
 

 Provide a list of strategic development policies that 
the Neighbourhood Plan must comply with   

 Advise on the statutory process for pre-submission  

 Provide a contact list for statutory consultees as 
defined in Schedule 1 of The Neighbourhood 
Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as 
amended); · 

 Provide comments and advice on specific issues 
proposed within a NP where officer resources are 
available, where there is a direct link with the 
emerging Local Plan, and where there are issues 
likely to affect meeting the Basic Conditions; · 

 Provide a high level review of a fully drafted (or 
close to fully drafted) Plan prior to · formal 
consultation where officer resources are available 
and invited to do so by the qualifying body; and,  

 Provide a formal response to the Pre-Submission 
Consultation. 

Submission and Examination  

 
 
 
 
 

Upon Submission to Hart District Council, we will: · 

 Undertake a review to ensure that the Submitted 
Neighbourhood Plan complies with ·all the 
statutory requirements; · 

 Confirm in writing to the Qualifying Body whether 
the Plan meets these requirements; 

 Undertake statutory consultation on the 
Submission NP for a minimum of 6 weeks; · 

 Notify consultation bodies identified in the 
Consultation Statement; and,  

Page 45



  

Stage What the Council will do 

 Provide a formal response to the Submission Plan 
as part of the consultation process.  

In relation to independent Examination of the Plan, the 
Council will: ·  

 Appoint, and fund an Examiner for the Plan in 
discussion with the relevant Qualifying Body; · 

 Produce a summary of representations from the 
Submission consultation to be sent to the 
Examiner and to the Qualifying Body and placed 
on the website; · Communicate examination 
timetables and progress with the Qualifying Body;  

 Discuss the independent Examiners Report on the 
NP with the Qualifying Body;  

 Consider at Executive the Examiners 
recommendations and make a decision as to 
whether to proceed to referendum;  

 Amend the Plan in line with the Examiners Report 
in conjunction with the Qualifying Body; and,  

 Issue a Decision Statement setting out its reasons 
for accepting or otherwise the Examiners 
modifications. 

Referendum 

 

 Liaise with the Qualifying Body on the 
Referendum date (which will be subject to 
resources and workloads of the Elections team);  

 Organise, fund and run the local referendum 

  

 

 

  

Page 46



  

APPENDIX E: 

 

Consultation procedures for Planning Applications 

 

Pre-submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed 
Development  

Statutory Requirements for 
Consultation and Notification  

Options for Additional 
Community Engagement 

 
Applications for planning 
permission or Listed 
Building Consent 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Applicant to serve notice on 
owner of land or, if unable to 
identify all the owners, then a 
site notice is displayed and 
press advertisement 
undertaken 

 
Encourage developers to 
discuss major development 
proposals with interested 
parties and local 
communities. 
For example, meet the parish 
council, notify immediate 
neighbours, conduct local 
exhibitions, 
publish newsletters, leaflets, 
online consultation etc. 
 
Publish the information on the 
Council’s website (except for 
any information which is of 
financial or commercial 
sensitivity) 

 

 

Post submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed Development Statutory Publicity 

All applications except for: 
Listed Building Consent 
Consent to display advertisements 
Prior approval for demolition of dwellings 
Agricultural determination as to whether prior 
approval of the Local 
Planning Authority is required 
Applications made under Section 191 and 
192 of the Act (applications for a 
certificate of lawful development for existing 
or proposed development or use) 

Details of valid planning applications entered 
on statutory register 
 
Site notice or neighbour notification letters 

Post submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed Development Statutory Publicity 

Applications (except those under Section 191 
or 192 of the Act) affecting the character or 
appearance of a Conservation Area 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the Council 
for at least 7 days 

Applications (except those under Section 191 
or192 of the Act) affecting the setting of a 
Listed 
Building 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the Council 
for at least 7 days 

Application accompanied by an 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) when application initially submitted to 
Council 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the Council 
for at least 7 days 

Page 47



  

Application accompanied by an EIA when 
EIA submitted to Council at a 
later date 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the applicant 
for at least 7 days 

Departure from the development plan Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the Council for 
at least 21 days 

Proposal affecting a public right of way Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the Council 
for at least 21 days 

Development of: 
10 or more dwellings, 
1000m2 or more of floorspace, or 
on a site larger than 0.5ha. 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the Council 
for at least 21 days or neighbour notification 

Development of: 
9 or fewer dwellings, 
less than 1000m2 floorspace, or 
on a site less than 0.5ha. 
(includes householder development) 
 

A site notice to be displayed by the Council at 
a prominent position near application site or 
at least 21 days or neighbour notification 

Post submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed Development Statutory Publicity 

Listed Building Consent 
except those where the proposals are for 
listed building consent to alter only the inside 
of a building listed Grade II or to 
vary/discharge conditions on such a consent 
already granted 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the Council 
for at least 7 days 

Listed Building Consent 
where the proposals are to alter only the 
inside of a building listed Grade II or to 
vary/discharge conditions on such a consent 
already granted 

Nil 

Consent to display advertisements Nil 

Applications to undertake works to trees 
covered by Tree Preservation Orders 

Details of applications entered on statutory 
register 

Notifications of intent to carry out work to 
trees in a Conservation Area not subject to a 
Tree Preservation Order 

Details of notifications entered on statutory 
register 

Determination for demolition of dwellings as 
to whether prior approval of Local Planning 
Authority is required 

Press notice published by the applicant 

Prior approval for the method of demolition 
and restoration of site associated with the 
demolition of dwellings 

Nil 

Agricultural determination as to whether prior 
approval of Local Planning Authority is 
required 

Nil 

Agricultural prior approval where prior 
approval of the Local Planning Authority is 
required for the siting, design and 
external appearance 

Press notice published by the applicant for a 
period of not less than 21 days beginning 
with the date on which the application is 
submitted. 

Post submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed Development Statutory Publicity 

Page 48



  

Telecommunications prior approval 
(Permitted development where prior approval 
of the Local Planning Authority is required for 
siting and appearance) 

A site notice to be displayed by the Council 
for at least 21 days or neighbour notification 

Applications under Section 191 of the Act 
(application for certificate of lawful 
development for existing development or use) 

Nil 

Applications under Section 192 of the Act 
(application for certificate of lawful 
development for proposed development or 
use) 

Nil 

Change of use prior approval (permitted 
development where prior 
approval of Local Planning Authority is 
required, depending on type, of transport, 
noise, flood risk, or contamination) 

As appropriate, Highways Agency, Local 
Highway Authority, Environment Agency or 
Environmental Health giving 21 days in which 
to make comments. 

Prior approval of enlarged residential rear 
extension  

Notification to adjoining neighbours setting 
out details of extension and giving at least 21 
days in which to make comment. 

   

 

 

Notes: 

 Letters of notification may extend beyond the statutory minimum 

subject to Officer discretion. 

 All initial notification letters will give 21 days for comment. 

 Consultation with statutory consultees and other amenity bodies is 

undertaken as appropriate in line with both statutory requirements and 

circular advice. 

 Where significant amendments to the application are accepted, further 

notification with adjoining owners and statutory consultees (as 

appropriate) will be undertaken. A minimum period of 14 days will be 

given for comment. 

 
 

 Definition of ‘Adjoining Property’: 

 
a) Any neighbouring property that shares a common boundary with the 
land subject to the proposed development. 
b) Where the proposed development is in a sub-divided building (e.g. a 
flatted property) and neighbouring land is NOT a sub-divided building - all 
parts of the building adjoining or within 4m of the part subject to the 
application, plus all parts of the building directly above and below. (a) 
above also applies. 
c) Where the proposed development is NOT a sub-divided building but 
neighbouring land comprises a sub-divided building (e.g. a flatted property) 
- only those parts of the sub-divided building that share a common 
boundary with the land for which the development is proposed, plus all 
parts of the building directly above and below those parts. 

Page 49



  

d) Where the proposed development is in a sub-divided building (e.g. a 
flatted property) 
AND neighbouring land also consists of a sub-divided building – we will 
follow (b) and (c) above. 

 

 

  

Page 50



  

APPENDIX F: 

Commenting on planning applications 

Comments on planning applications can be in support or object to a proposal but 

they must address material planning considerations if the Council is to take them into 

account in making its decision.  They must relate to planning laws, which aim to 

regulate development and use of land in the public interest.  Your comments must 

also relate to the development that is being proposed. 

The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person 
against the activities of another.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and 
private interests, but this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not 
whether owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience financial 
or other loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal would 
unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings which ought 
to be protected in the public interest. 
 
When we make decisions on planning applications: 

Matters that CAN be taken into account 

Local planning policies and 
guidance 
 

Government advice 

Effect on the street scene or area 
 

Size, layout and density of buildings 

Design, appearance and materials 
 

Adequacy of car parking 

Traffic generation and safety 
 

Overlooking and loss of privacy 

Noise and disturbance 
 

Ground contamination 

 

Matters that CANNOT be taken into account 

Loss of property value Private rights of way  

Disturbance from construction works Matters covered by leases or 
covenants 

Competition from other uses Ownership rights 

Land and boundary disputes Private issues about drains 
 

Property maintenance issues The identity or personal 
characteristics of the applicant 

The need for development (except 
in certain defined circumstances) 

The loss of a view 
 

 

 

 

Why can’t they be taken into account in planning decisions? 

That is not to say that these matters are not important, or may eventually prevent the 

development taking place, but they do not relate to planning law, and are often 

controlled through some other legislation. 

Page 51



  

How long do I have to make comments? 
Comments will be taken into account until the point of determination although we 
encourage them to be sent as soon as possible. If they are received outside the time 
limit, you will miss the opportunity to have them taken into account. Please also note 
that they cannot be treated in confidence and will be available to the public. 

 
Can I discuss the application? 
If you are concerned about the proposal or need clarification before writing, you can 
talk to the case planning officer. Your local district councillor will also be able to listen 
to your views but will not be able to discuss the merits of the case with you as this 
may prevent them speaking about the application if it is to be dealt with at committee. 
 
Details of your councillor can be found on the Council's website or you can contact 
Planning Services for the information on 01252 774419 or by email to 
planningadmin@hart.gov.uk 
 
What will happen to my comments? 
Any comments you make within the set time limits will be taken into account in 
reaching a decision.  However, planning staff and councillors have to consider every 
aspect of the application and all relevant issues and the final decision may be 
contrary to your views. 
 

 

  

Page 52



  

APPENDIX G:  

Library and Parish & Town Council contact details: 

Public libraries (run by Hampshire County Council) 
For opening times see https://www.hants.gov.uk/librariesandarchives 
 
Fleet Library 
236 Fleet Road, Fleet, Hampshire GU51 4BX 
 
Yateley Library 
School Lane, Yateley, Hampshire GU46 6NL 
 
Odiham Independent Community Library (run by Odiham Parish Council as a 
book exchange) for further details go to 
https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/home/library 
The Bury, Odiham RG29 1NB 
 
Town and Parish Council contact details 
 
Blackwater and Hawley Town Council 
Hawley Leisure Centre, Fernhill Road, Hawley Green, Blackwater GU17 9BW 

: 01276 33050 / 35411 

: enquiries@blackwaterandhawleytowncouncil.gov.uk 

 
Bramshill Parish Council 
Email: clerk.bramshill@btconnect.com 
 
Church Crookham Parish Council 
Church Crookham Community Centre, Boyce Road, Crookham Park, GU52 8AQ 

: 01252 626793 

: clerk@churchcrookham.org.uk 

 
Crondall Parish Council 
PO Box 623, Farnham, Surrey GU9 1HB 

: 07510 917232 

: clerk@crondall-pc.gov.uk 

 
Crookham Village Parish Council 
Daegmarsfield Farm, Church Lane, Dogmersfield, RG27 8SZ 

: 01252 810568 

: clerk@crookhamvillage.org.uk 

 
Dogmersfield Parish Council 

: 01252 214054 

: clerk@dogmersfieldparish.co.uk 

 
Elvetham Heath  
The Key Centre, The Key, Fleet, Hampshire, GU51 1HA 

: 01252 819204 

: office@elvethamheath-pc.org.uk 

Page 53

https://www.hants.gov.uk/librariesandarchives
https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/home/library
mailto:enquiries@blackwaterandhawleytowncouncil.gov.uk
mailto:clerk.bramshill@btconnect.com
mailto:clerk@churchcrookham.org.uk
mailto:clerk@crondall-pc.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@crookhamvillage.org.uk
mailto:clerk@dogmersfieldparish.co.uk
mailto:office@elvethamheath-pc.org.uk


  

Eversley Parish Council  
PO Box 1246, Yateley, Hampshire, GU47 7FR 

: 01252 876924 

: clerk@eversley-pc.gov.uk 

 
Ewshot Parish Council 

: 01256 397009 

: clerk@ewshotpc.com 

 
Fleet Town Council 
The Harlington, 236 Fleet Road, Fleet, Hampshire GU51 4BY 

: 01252 625246 

: clerk@fleet-tc.gov.uk 

 
Greywell Parish Council 

: 01256 861371 

: parishclerk@greywell.info 

 
Hartley Wintney Parish Council 
Parish Office, 1st Floor, Appleton Hall, West Green, Road, Hartley Wintney, Hook, 
Hampshire RG27 8RQ 

: 01252 845152 

: clerk@hartleywintney.org.uk / admin@hartleywintney-pc.gov.uk 

 
Heckfield Parish Council 

: 07515 777 060 

: clerk.heckfield@gmail.com 

 
Hook Parish Council 
Hook Community Centre, Ravenscroft, Hook, Hampshire RG27 9NN 

: 01256 768573 or 768687 

: clerk@hook.gov.uk 

 
Long Sutton and Well Parish Council 

: 07792 463611 

: clerk@longsutton.com 

 
Mattingley Parish Council 

: 07515 777 060 

: clerk.mattingley@parish.hants.gov.uk 

 
Odiham Parish Council 
Odiham Parish Council Office, The Bridewell, The Bury, Odiham, Hampshire 
RG29 1NB 

: 01256 702716 

: clerk@odiham.org.uk 

 
Rotherwick Parish Council 

: 01252 492136 / 07792 463611 

: clerk@rotherwick.org.uk 

Page 54

mailto:clerk@eversley-pc.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@ewshotpc.com
mailto:clerk@fleet-tc.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@hartleywintney.org.uk
mailto:clerk@hook.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@longsutton.com
mailto:clerk@odiham.org.uk
mailto:clerk@rotherwick.org.uk


  

 
South Warnborough Parish Council 

: 07792 463611 

: clerk.swparishcouncil@gmail.com 

 
Winchfield Parish Council 

: winchfieldparishclerk@outlook.com 

 
Yateley Town Council 
Council Offices, Reading Road, Yateley, Hampshire GU46 7RP 

: 01252 872198 

: office@yateley-tc.gov.uk 

 

 
  

Page 55

mailto:clerk.swparishcouncil@gmail.com
mailto:office@yateley-tc.gov.uk


  

Appendix 3 
Equality Impact Assessment  

 
 

Service   Place 

Project, policy, strategy or function 
assessed  

 SCI 2021 update  

Lead Officer   Daniel Hawes/Stephanie Baker  

Team   Planning Policy and Development 
Management  

Start date of assessment   9 August 2021 

Completion of assessment   9 August 2021  

 
1. Who will the 

project/policy/strategy/change 
impact on?  

Residents Existing service 
users 

Staff 

(please tick all that apply) yes yes yes 

2. Summary of the proposal: 
 
• What are the aims, objectives, outcomes, purpose of the service, strategy, policy, project or 
function that you are assessing? 
• Is this a new or existing service, project, policy, strategy or function? 
• Will the project, policy or strategy will help to deliver against the ambitions of the Council's 
Vision 2040 or Corporate Plan? 
• Who will be affected by the service, project, policy, strategy or function? 
• How many people are likely to be affected and from what sections of the community? 
• What decision-making route is being taken? 

 

 
This is an update of an existing adopted document ‘Statement of Community Involvement’ which is 
required by Planning legislation to set out the Council’s procedures and processes for consultation 
when preparing planning policy documents and considering planning applications.  
 
The SCI has been prepared to explain clearly: 

 how the community will be involved 

 which sectors of the community will be involved 

 the stages at which that involvement will take place 

 the methods to be used in that involvement, and 

 a commitment to feedback the outcome of engagement with the community. 
 
Both residents and all other stakeholders may be from time to time be involved in the planning 
functions of the Council, the SCI sets out expectations – who will consulted, when and how. The 
revisions proposed simply reflect good practise and provide more detail of how we will involve the 
community in various aspects of planning processes. 
 
The SCI is a key tool to assist the planning service be an inclusive and engaging service as 
required by the 2040 Vision and falls under the Effective and Efficient Council priority of the current 
Corporate Plan.   
 
More specifically the Corporate Plan refers to ‘supporting local communities to have a say in the 
future of their area’, the mechanisms set out in the SCI facilitate this to happen in relation to 
planning functions.   
 
A key driver for the update has been the recommendations set out in the Development 
Management Peer Review 2019 and accompanying action plan agreed by Cabinet in December 
2020 which includes :  

 Adopt a 3 week consultation period for Parishes (with flexibility in certain cases)  

 Cease posting site notices except required by statute 
 

Page 56



  

The updates include:  

 References to National Planning Policy  

 References to Duty to Co-operate (plan making) 

 References to Corporate Equalities Policy and Data Protection 

 Expanded section on planning application process (previously only covered in an Appendix) 
 

3. Summarise findings of any data, research or consultation used to inform your 
assessment of impacts: 

(Consider district equality and diversity profile information, workforce equality profile, service 
monitoring data, census statistics, other organisations EqIAs, customer/resident consultation or 
feedback, publicly available research, expert/best practice guidance etc) 
 
If there are gaps in the information you have, please look at how you will address these before 
moving on to part 4. 

 
This update relies on data previously collated as part of the local plan process, which includes a 
wide range of evidence based studies which have been undertaken and include demographic 
reviews of information in order to identify the key issues and needs of the protected groups.  
 
The Hart Equality and Diversity Information 2020, published in support of the Councils equalities 
policy published in 2021, provides details of these groups and composition of the District. This 
document explicitly refers in Section 2 to the equalities  impact assessment carried out in 2017/18 
on the emerging draft local plan.  
 
The purpose of the SCI is to be inclusive with all planning consultations, albeit it is acknowledged 
that certain groups may require a tailored approach which is referenced at Para 2.5-6 of the revised 
document and makes specific mention to equalities requirements and the need for using a variety of 
consultation methods to reach as many people as possible. Furthermore, given the rural nature of 
the District, there is a recognised need to engage with key organisations such as Parish and Town 
Councils to enable those without access/digital access to be able to view and comment on 
documents/planning applications locally.   
 
 
 

 
  

Page 57

https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Corporate_policies/Hart%20Equality%20and%20Diversity%20Profile%202020.pdf


  

4. Will the project/policy/strategy have a differential* impact (actual or potential) on any of the groups below?  
 
*A ‘differential impact’ is when a project/policy/proposal etc. has a different impact on certain groups compared to others. 
This impact may be: 
Positive = promotes equality (will help to remove or minimise disadvantage; takes steps to meet the needs of people from equality groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people; will encourage increased participation of particular groups; will promote understanding or integration between 
groups/build better relationships between communities) 
Negative = disadvantages/discriminates against some groups (may disadvantage/result in less favourable treatment for particular groups; may give rise to 
indirect discrimination; may give rise to unlawful harassment or victimisation) 
Neutral = if no evidence is found to suggest that any group/community will be affected positively or negatively more than another by the 
project/policy/strategy/proposal. 
  
If you assess a negative impact for any of the groups then you will need to assess whether that impact is low, medium or high, and identify 
mitigating actions to remove or reduce the impact.  
 

 

Impact (negative, 
neutral, positive) 

If negative impact, 
what is the likely 
extent of impact 
(low, medium, 
high)  

 
Please describe the impact and give 
brief reasons and evidence for the 
impact score (even if neutral impact) 

If negative impact, 
to what extent do 
you feel you are 
able to mitigate the 
impact? (fully, to 
some extent, not at 
all) 

Protected characteristic group 

Sex     

- Women Neutral   The SCI makes no distinction of this 
group and consultation methods to be 
utilised.  

 

- Men Neutral     

Race Positive/Neutral  The SCI includes reference to 
information being available in 
alternative formats/language on 
request.  

 

Disability Neutral   The SCI makes no distinction of this 
group and consultation methods to be 
utilised.  

 

Age     

P
age 58

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/what-direct-and-indirect-discrimination#:~:text=Indirect%20discrimination%20happens%20when%20there,as%20part%20of%20this%20group.
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/what-harassment-and-victimisation#:~:text=Anything%20that%20is%20unwelcome%20to,or%20offensive%20environment%20for%20you.


  

- Children and young 
people 

Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

- Working age adults Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

- Older adults Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

Sexual orientation Neutral   The SCI makes no distinction of this 
group and consultation methods to be 
utilised.  

 

Religion or belief (including no 
belief) 

Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

Gender reassignment Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

Pregnancy and maternity Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

Marriage or civil partnership Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

Other groups 

Low 
income/benefits/unemployed 

Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 

 

P
age 59



  

media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

Living in rural area Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

Unpaid carers Neutral   The SCI includes reference to making 
best use of digital channels and social 
media, which may be preferred by 
some groups 

 

5. Action plan 
List any actions resulting from this assessment – either to enhance the impact on equality/actively promote equality of opportunity or to 
mitigate/address any negative impact identified 

Action Officer responsible Target date 

   

   

   

6. Summary of findings for reporting purposes (briefly say what was assessed, what the findings were and note any actions) 

 
When assessed against the categories of protected characteristics the SCI itself makes no specific reference to certain groups and hence 
any potential impacts are recorded as neutral. As stated above the SCI includes reference to the Council’s equalities duty and the need for 
using a variety of consultation methods to reach as many people as possible.  
 
Furthermore, given the rural nature of the District, there is a recognised need to engage with key organisations such as Parish and Town 
Councils to enable those without digital access to be able to view and comment on documents/planning applications locally.   
 
There are no specific actions to be noted at this stage. The preparation of individual planning policy documents will require their own EqIA in 
due course.  
 
In terms of development management consultation procedures these are evolving to be more effective and efficient.  
 
 
 

 

P
age 60



  

7. What course of action does this EqIA suggest you take? (base this decision on your assessment of 
the protected characteristic groups) 

Tick one of the 
following options 

Do not proceed with the project/policy/strategy/function – Stop and rethink the proposal when the EqIA 
shows actual or potential unlawful discrimination. Do not adopt or continue with the policy/proposal until further 
actions and equality assessment has been undertaken. 

 

Continue the project/policy/strategy/function - there is potential for adverse impact or missed opportunities to 
promote equality identified, but no actual or potential unlawful discrimination has been identified. You should 
ensure that the EqIA clearly sets out the justifications for continuing with the policy. Ensure effective equality 
monitoring is in place to regularly assess the actual impact on different groups. 

 

Adjust the project/policy/strategy/function to remove barriers identified by the EqIA or better promote 
equality. Are you satisfied that the policy adjustments will remove the barriers identified? 

 

No major change required to the project/policy/strategy/function - the assessment of this policy/proposal 
shows no potential for discrimination. The item will meet the aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty. Therefore it 
can proceed to inform a Member decision. 

Yes P
age 61



  

 

Page 62



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

Statement of Community Involvement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted [September 2021] 

 

  

Page 63



 

2 

 

Contents  

1. Introduction  

 

2. Context  

 

3. Development Plan Documents (Local Plan) 

 

4. Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

5. Neighbourhood plans  

 

6. Planning Applications  

 

Appendix A  Statutory Consultees, Key Stakeholders and Duty to Co-operate 

Bodies 

Appendix B Consultation Procedures for Hart’s Development Plan Documents 

Appendix C Consultation Procedures for Hart’s Supplementary Planning 

Documents  

Appendix D Steps in Preparing a Neighbourhood Plan in Hart 

Appendix E Consultation Procedures for Planning Applications  

Appendix F Commenting on Planning Applications  

Appendix G Library, Parish and Town Council contact details  

 

 

  

Page 64



 

3 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

What is the Statement of Community Involvement? 

1.1 It is a statutory requirement that the Council prepares and maintains a 

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)1. The SCI formally sets out how 

the Council will involve local communities, business and other stakeholders in 

local planning decisions primarily the local plan and planning applications.   

1.2 The SCI was originally adopted in 2006, updated in 2011 and 2014, with 

Appendix D updated in 2017.  Some further temporary changes were 

introduced in 2020 to reflect restrictions imposed during the coronavirus 

pandemic.  

1.3 This 2021 revision introduces some changes to the consultation processes for 

planning applications. It also includes some edits to the plan-making sections 

to update and simplify the document, with references to Equality principles 

under the Equality Act 2010 and how we use your data under the General 

Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018.  

1.4  The information contained in this document can be made available in 

alternative formats.  Please contact us for more information at 

planningpolicy@hart.gov.uk 

 

2.0  CONTEXT - Why do we do it? 

2.1 National planning policy places considerable emphasis on encouraging early 

community involvement, stating that plans should be shaped by early, 

proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers and 

communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and 

operators and statutory consultees2. It also encourages community 

engagement before planning applications are submitted stating that good 

quality pre-application discussion enables better co-ordination between public 

and private resources and improved outcomes for the community.3 

2.2 To assist with this process, the SCI has been prepared to explain clearly: 

 how the community will be involved 

 the stages at which that involvement will take place 

 the methods to be used in that involvement, and 

 a commitment to feedback the outcome of engagement with the 

community. 

                                                           
1 Under Section 18 of the Planning and Compensation Act 2004, as amended by the Planning Act 2008, the   
Localism Act 2011, and the Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017. 
2 National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021 – para. 16  
3 National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021 – para. 39 
 

Page 65

mailto:planningpolicy@hart.gov.uk


 

4 

 

2.3 We will commit to taking full account of the views expressed by the public, 

consultees, District Councillors, and Parish and Town Councils. However, 

planning decisions must be: 

 made within legal requirements 

 in accordance with national planning policy and guidance, and 

 based on sound, technical evidence.  

 

Community Involvement principles – equalities  

2.4 The Council needs to ensure that it meets the public sector equality duty 

(Equality Act 2010), which aims to promote equality, eliminate discrimination 

and encourage good relations between different groups associated with age, 

disability, gender/gender reassignment, race, religion and other protected 

characteristics. We have a Corporate Equalities Policy4, which will be followed 

in all consultations carried out by the Council 

2.5 We will use a variety of methods to reach as many people as possible 

including making best use of digital channels and social media, which may be 

preferred by some groups. In some cases hard copies of documents will also 

be available at district, town and parish council offices and in local libraries. 

Information in alternative languages and formats can be provided on request 

where there is considered to be a genuine need, so as to be accessible to all 

sections of the community. 

 

Data Protection -  How will we protect your information? 

2.6 To allow us to register comments on local plan documents and planning 

applications, we do record your contact details on the Local Plan and planning 

application database, which allows us to respond to the comments you have 

made. There are also statutory requirements we must meet in making copies 

of comments publicly available. We will therefore publish names and 

associated representations on our website but we will not publish any further 

personal information such as telephone numbers or email addresses, in 

accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the 

Data Protection Act 2018,  

2.7 We will not use your personal data for any purpose other than set out when 

collected without first obtaining your consent. We will only share your personal 

information with third parties where required by law. The information relating 

to planning policy documents will only be retained until the relevant document 

has been adopted and any period for legal challenge has passed. If a legal 

challenge is made, it will be retained until the outcome is known. For planning 

applications, your comments and details will be retained permanently.  

2.8 Hart District Council has a privacy policy which can be viewed at 

https://www.hart.gov.uk/privacy.  

                                                           
4 Hart District Council – Corporate Equalities Policy – April 2021 

Page 66

https://www.hart.gov.uk/privacy


 

5 

 

3. DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS (LOCAL PLAN) 

 What is the Local Plan and how is the community involved? 

 

3.1 Development Plan Documents (usually a Local Plan) are the main planning 

policy documents prepared by the Council.  They set out a vision, objectives, 

strategy and policies to guide future development. 

3.2 The most recent DPD in Hart is the Hart Local Plan (Strategy and Sites) 2032 

adopted in April 2020.  Local Plans must be regularly reviewed and updated 

when necessary. 

3.3 Planning legislation requires local planning authorities preparing local plans to 

consult and notify ‘specific consultation bodies,’ ‘general consultation bodies,’ 

and residents or other such persons carrying out business in the area that the 

Council considers it appropriate to invite representations from.  The ‘specific’ 

and ‘general’ consultation bodies are listed in Appendix A. 

3.4 Any interested parties not listed under the ‘specific’ or ‘general’ consultation 

bodies can request to be added to the Council’s Local Plan mailing list.  They 

will then be notified when a document is available for consultation or is 

adopted.  To be included on the mailing list, please contact 

planningpolicy@hart.gov.uk 

3.5 Plan-making involves a process that includes at least two consultations. 

Appendix B sets out the key stages and the Council’s approach to 

consultation at those stages.  At each stage of community engagement, any 

comments we receive will be analysed and taken into account, this feedback 

will be given through publication on the Council’s website, issuing press 

releases and statements, and copies will be available to view at the Council 

Offices. 

Duty to cooperate 

3.6 We also have a legal duty to cooperate5 with neighbouring authorities and 

other prescribed authorities and agencies when plan-making.  This means 

working ‘constructively, actively and on an on-going basis’ on strategic issues 

having a significant impact on at least two planning areas. The duty to co-

operate bodies are set out at the end of Appendix A.   

How does Sustainability Appraisal/Strategic Environmental 

Assessment/Habitat Regulations Assessment fit into the process?  

3.7  All DPDs are subject to Sustainability Appraisal (SA), but SA is not required 

for SPDs, it is optional.  An SA considers how the principles of sustainable 

development have been taken into account in the development of the 

document being appraised. 

                                                           
5 Localism Act 2011 and Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

Page 67

mailto:planningpolicy@hart.gov.uk


 

6 

 

3.8 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) and Habitats Regulation 

Assessment (HRA) are also required by an EU Directive which is now 

transposed into UK legislation, on the assessment of the effects of certain 

plans and programmes on the environment.  Plans and programmes with the 

potential to have significant environmental effects (positive or negative) are 

required to undergo SEA.  All DPDs are subject to SEA, whilst SPDs and 

Neighbourhood Plans that have the potential for significant environmental 

effects may therefore be subject to SEA.  

3.9 The HRA screening process will consider if there are potential impacts arising 

as from a plan are likely to have significant effect on any sites designated for 

their nature conservation importance, either alone or in combination with other 

plans and projects. If potential impacts are identified then this will trigger the 

need for a more detailed Appropriate Assessment. 

3.10 Consultation is required with specific organisations for five weeks on the 

SA/SEA/HRA, although all the documents are published alongside emerging 

DPD’s, for comment. 

 

4. SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS 

 

What are Supplementary Planning Documents and how can you be 

involved? 

4.1 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) provide additional guidance from 

the Council support specific policies in the Local Plan. SPDs do not set new 

policy or allocate land.  

4.2 SPDs are not part of the Development Plan for the District but support Local 

Plan policies with more detail and they are a material consideration in 

determining planning applications.  The process is initially similar to preparing 

a DPD, but because they expand on existing policy, they are not subject to 

independent examination. 

4.3 As with Local Plans, there are certain required stages of consultation set out 

in the regulations that we must follow.  These are set out in Appendix C. 

 

5. NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANS 

How we will help communities prepare Neighbourhood Plans? 

5.1 Neighbourhood planning was introduced through the Localism Act 2011 and 

allows communities to take the lead on shaping how their local area is 

developed.  Neighbourhood Plans are not prepared by the District Council but 

by Parish or Town Councils, Neighbourhood Forums or community 

organisations that meet the criteria for qualifying bodies, and they set out 

policies for the development and use of land in a local area or neighbourhood. 

Page 68



 

7 

 

5.2 Neighbourhood Plans are important and sit alongside the Local Plan in being 

the starting point for determining planning applications.  They cannot promote 

less development than the Local Plan and cannot alter past planning 

decisions.  They should support the delivery of the strategic policies contained 

in local plans and should shape and direct development that is not covered by 

the strategic policies.  All policies in the Neighbourhood Plan must conform 

with national planning policies and the up-to-date Local Plan.  Once they are 

adopted or “made”, Neighbourhood Plans form part of the development plan 

for the area they cover.  

5.3  Neighbourhood Plans must follow legal requirements for consultation and 

engagement, which in the early stages is the responsibility of the Parish or 

Town Council, whilst the District Council will carry out consultation on the final 

draft version, arranges the independent examination and organises the 

referendum of the local community. 

5.4 We are required to actively help communities in the process of preparing 

Neighbourhood Plans, but the plan-making process itself must be community 

led.  We have produced guidance setting out in more detail the support that 

the District Council will give to local communities preparing neighbourhood 

plans.  This, along with links to other supporting information, can be found at 

https://www.hart.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning 

5.5 The steps required in preparing a Neighbourhood Plan are set out in 

Appendix D. 

 

  

Page 69

https://www.hart.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning


 

8 

 

 

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

How will we consult on planning applications and take the communities’ 

views into account? 

6.1  When we receive a valid planning application, we have a duty to consider and 

determine it, regardless of whether it meets adopted policies or not.  We are 

committed to consulting with those we feel are likely to be most affected by 

the proposal, and take their views into account, before reaching a decision on 

the application.  However, it needs to be understood that planning decisions 

are not a matter of free choice.  They must be made within legal 

requirements, have regard to national planning policy and guidance, and be 

based on sound, technical evidence. 

6.2 We will consult in accordance with the statutory requirements of the relevant 

legislation6. We will always  

 consult with the Parish or Town Council; 

 notify immediately adjoining neighbours; 

 consult with statutory bodies as appropriate; and 

 for some applications, advertise in a local newspaper or on 

social media. 

6.3 Site notices may be displayed for certain applications.  Planning applications 

that would be a “departure” from the Development Plan (in other words, do 

not appear to comply with policies in the Plan) will always be advertised in a 

local newspaper and with a site notice.  All new planning applications are 

advertised in a Weekly List placed on the Council’s website, and residents 

can register to be notified of planning applications in their locality.  The 

procedures we follow in consulting on planning applications are set out in 

Appendix E. 

6.4 Following an initial site visit, we may decide that wider neighbour notification 

may be appropriate, given the nature of the site and/or the proposed 

development. Neighbours and Parish/Town Councils are given 21 days to 

respond if they wish to comment on a planning application.  This may be 

shorter on subsequent notifications of amended plans.  Comments on a 

planning application may be made by anyone, regardless of whether they 

have been notified or live locally.  Comments can be in support of, or 

objection to a proposal but must address material planning considerations, if 

the Council is to take them into account in making its decision.  A list of 

material planning considerations can be found at Appendix F. 

6.5 Comments on planning applications should be submitted to the Council as 

soon as possible, although we will take into account any representations 

received by the point of the decision being made.  All those making comments 

                                                           
6 Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

Page 70



 

9 

 

on planning applications should be aware that they will be made available for 

public inspection on our website and at the Civic Offices, and comments 

cannot be treated as confidential. 

6.6 Occasionally, it may be necessary to prepare and publish reports on planning 

applications for the Planning Committee before the notification period has 

expired.  In these circumstances, comments received post-publication will be 

reported verbally to Committee (and referred to in an Addendum note to the 

Committee report) and taken into account in the decision-making process. 

6.7 We will also consult with relevant non-statutory bodies and organisations, 

such as local business and amenity groups.  In addition, where a major 

application has likely implications for a strategic service provider, such as 

Health Service providers, we will consult these at an early stage. 

6.8 Some types of development have permission granted automatically under 

national legislation and therefore do not require a planning application to be 

submitted.  These can include certain types of household extensions, some 

changes of use of land or buildings and minor operations.  These are 

generally referred to as “permitted development”, and further information can 

be found at www.planningportal.co.uk 

 Decisions on Planning Applications 

6.9 Like other Councils, most planning applications in Hart are determined by the 

head of the planning service (Head of Place) under powers delegated by the 

Council as set out in the Council’s Constitution7, following full consideration of 

all the planning issues and comments received through the consultation 

process.  

6.10 Decisions on the more complex and controversial planning applications will be 

determined by the Council’s Planning Committee or Major Sites Sub-

Committee, along with those applications requested for committee 

determination by a local Ward Councillor (subject to the provisions of the 

scheme of delegation 8).  Public speaking will be permitted at Planning 

Committee for those who wish to speak in support or object to a planning 

application, provided that this is arranged beforehand in accordance with the 

approved procedure.8  Public speaking will take place ahead of the 

determination of the planning application. 

6.11 There is also the opportunity for Parish or Town Councils to speak at the 

Committee on planning applications within their respective boundaries.   In the 

event that a planning application is to be determined by the Planning 

                                                           
7 Hart District Council – Part 3c of the Constitution - Scheme of Delegation on Planning Applications  
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Corporate_p
olicies/Constitution.pdf 
8 Hart District Council – Public Speaking at Planning Committee - 
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Council_meetings/Public%20speaking%20at%20Pl
anning%20Committee.pdf 

Page 71

http://www.planningportal.co.uk/
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Corporate_policies/Constitution.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Policies_and_published_documents/Corporate_policies/Constitution.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Council_meetings/Public%20speaking%20at%20Planning%20Committee.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/4_The_Council/Council_meetings/Public%20speaking%20at%20Planning%20Committee.pdf


 

10 

 

Committee, all those who have made representations on the application will 

be notified ahead of the proceedings. 

Pre-Application Stage 

6.12 In line with good practice, we offer applicants a pre-application advice 

service.9  The advantage of this service is to highlight potential issues and 

resolve problems before an application is submitted, resulting in a more 

efficient use of resources, and faster decision-making. Pre-application 

submissions and our response to them will be available for public inspection, 

unless the Council considers such information as commercially sensitive. 

6.13 As part of this process, we encourage all applicants and developers to discuss 

their proposals with their neighbours and the local community before 

submitting their formal application.  This will not affect the statutory 

notifications which take place on receipt of a planning application, but early 

engagement with the community may reduce delay, and allows the applicant 

to demonstrate how the proposal has taken local views into account. 

6.14 The level of community engagement should reflect the scale of the proposed 

development.  Since we must remain impartial ahead of determining the 

planning application, the Council will not be involved with any engagement 

with the community by the applicant.  We can only request potential applicants 

to involve the local community at the pre-application stage, not require them 

to.  Moreover, we cannot refuse planning permission merely because an 

applicant did not engage with the community before submission. 

 

  

                                                           
9 Hart District Council – Pre-application Advice Service - 
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Planning_for_businesses/preapplication%20advice
%20protocol.pdf 
 

Page 72

https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Planning_for_businesses/preapplication%20advice%20protocol.pdf
https://www.hart.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2_Businesses/Planning_for_businesses/preapplication%20advice%20protocol.pdf


 

11 

 

APPENDIX A:  

Statutory Consultees, Key Stakeholders and Duty to Co-operate Bodies 

When preparing local development documents, the Council must consider whether 
any of certain ‘specific’ and ‘general consultation bodies’ (as defined in legislation) 
may have an interest in the subject matter of the document and should therefore be 
consulted. 
 
For Hart, the relevant ‘specific consultation bodies’ are: 
 

 The Coal Authority 

 The Environment Agency 

 Historic England 

 The Highways Agency 

 Homes England 

 Natural England 

 Adjoining Local Planning Authorities 

 Town and Parish Councils within Hart District as well as those adjoining the 
district 

 Hampshire County Council 

 Hampshire Police Authority 

 NHS England 

 Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) 

 Network Rail 

 Surrey County Council  

 Relevant service providers (gas, electric, sewerage and water)  

 Relevant telecommunications providers or those who own or control electronic 
communications apparatus located within Hart District 
 

 
The relevant ‘general’ consultation bodies in Hart include the following: 
(This list may vary depending on the content of the Local Development Document 
being consulted upon.) 
 

 Amenity groups (including the Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings, 
the Georgian Group, the Victorian Society and the Twentieth Century Society) 

 Civic Societies 

 Community groups and residents associations 

 Countryside / Conservation groups 

 Development and property owning interests 

 Disability groups 

 Ethnic minority groups (to include the National Federation of Gypsy Liaison 
Groups) 

 Health groups and organisations 

 Housing interest groups and Housing Associations 

 Local business groups 

 Older persons groups 

 Educational organisations 

Page 73



 

12 

 

 Sport and recreation bodies and organisations 

 Other groups / individuals (to include the residents of Hart District) 

 Parish Plan groups 

 Religious groups 

 Surrey and Hampshire Canal Society 

 The Theatres Trust 

 Youth groups 

 The Crown Estate 

 South Western Railway 
 
Duty to Co-operate Bodies 
 
The following are the bodies which the Council has a statutory duty to co-operate 
with, as appropriate, depending on the issues under consideration: 
 

 Neighbouring local authorities and County Councils 

 Environment Agency 

 Historic England 

 Natural England 

 The Mayor of London 

 Civil Aviation Authority 

 Homes England 

 NHS England 

 Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s) 

 National Health Service Commissioning Board 

 Office of the Rail Regulator 

 Hampshire County Council as highway authority  

 Highways Agency 

 Enterprise M3 Local Enterprise Partnership 

 Hampshire and Isle of Wight Local Nature Partnership 

 
 
  

Page 74



 

13 

 

APPENDIX B: 

Consultation Procedures for Hart’s Development Plan Documents 

 

Preparation Stage Statutory Requirement 
for Consultation and 
Notification  

Options for Additional 
Community 
Engagement 

Evidence gathering 
 
Sustainability Appraisal 
/Strategic Environmental 
Assessment/Habitats 
Regulation Assessment 
(SA/SEA/HRA)  

 
 
Natural England, Historic 
England and Environment 
Agency are consulted for 5 
weeks 

Involvement of other 
stakeholders as appropriate 
may take place 

Public participation in the 
preparation of a 
development 
plan document and 
SA/SEA/HRA  
 
 

 Specific and general 
consultation bodies 
(as appropriate) are 
notified and invited 
to comment on what 
the document ought 
to contain. 

 Consider whether to 
invite comments 
from local residents 
or businesses 

 For SA/SEA/HRA, 
consultation will 
include Natural 
England, Historic 
England and 
Environment Agency 
together with other 
appropriate key 
stakeholders  

 Consider any 
representations 
received 

 Place details of 
consultation on 
Council website 

 Place details of 
consultation in 
libraries and parish 
council offices 

 Consult stakeholders 
and those who have 
requested to be 
consulted (on the 
Local Plan database) 

 Consider 
engagement with 
community forums 

 Consider holding 
public exhibitions 

 Consider whether to 
consult on policy 
options in the 
document 

Publication of a 
development plan document 
and SA/SEA/HRA 
 
 

 Make proposed 
submission 
documents available 
for inspection at 
appropriate places 
and on the Council’s 
website 

 Advise each of the 
specific and general 
consultation bodies 
invited to comment 
during public 
participation that the 
proposed 
submission 

 Issue press release 
announcing 
proposed 
submission 
documents 
consultation exercise 

 Publish on the 
Council website a 
summary of 
representations 
received at the 
public participation 
stage. 

 Inform those who 
have requested to be 

Page 75



 

14 

 

Preparation Stage Statutory Requirement 
for Consultation and 
Notification  

Options for Additional 
Community 
Engagement 

documents are 
available for 
inspection and 
where and when 
they can be viewed. 
 

 Anyone may make 
representations 
during the 
consultation period 
which must be for at 
least 6 weeks from 
the date the 
availability notice is 
published 

 Publish on the 
Council website a 
summary of the main 
issues raised from 
representations 
received. 
Representations will 
be available to view 
on the Council’s 
website 

 For SA, consultation 
will take place on the 
Sustainability 
Appraisal report in 
the same way as 
above. This will 
include appropriate 
bodies 

kept up to date (on 
the Local Plan 
database) 

Public examination 
 
 
 

At least 6 weeks before the 
examination starts: 

 Publish details of 
venue and date on 
website 

 Notify people who 
made 
representations of 
those details 

 For SA, significant 
changes resulting 
from representations 
would be appraised 
at the examination 

 No community 
engagement takes 
place at this stage 

 Issue press release 
announcing details 
of the public 
examination 

Adoption 
 
 
 

 Make adopted 
document, plus 
SA/SEA/HRA 
adoption statement 

 No community 
engagement takes 
place at this stage 

Page 76



 

15 

 

Preparation Stage Statutory Requirement 
for Consultation and 
Notification  

Options for Additional 
Community 
Engagement 

 available for 
inspection 

 Notify anyone who 
requested to be 
notified of adoption 

 Send the adoption 
statement to the 
Secretary of State 

 Issue press release 
announcing adoption 

   

 

 

  

Page 77



 

16 

 

APPENDIX C: 

Consultation Procedures for Hart’s Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

Preparation Stage 
 
 

Statutory Requirement 
for Consultation and 
Notification 

Options for Additional 
Community 
Engagement 

Evidence gathering  
- where SA or SEA are 
carried out, evidence 
gathering will be completed 

 

SA/SEA Scoping Report will 
be consulted upon for a 
minimum of 5 weeks. 

 

Public participation  
and, if SA/SEA is carried 
out, then reports will be 
completed 

 
 

 Make document 
available for 
inspection including 
on the Council’s 
website. Anyone 
may make a 
representation. The 
representation 
period must be no 
less than 4 weeks 

 Consider any 
representations 
received 

 For SA, consultation 
will include: Natural 
England, Historic 
England and the 
Environment Agency 
together with other 
appropriate key 
stakeholders 

Issue press release 
announcing 
public participation exercise 

Adoption  
Adoption statement for 
SA/SEA purposes  
 
 

 
 

 Adopted document, 
adoption statement 
& statement of 
representations 
made available for 
inspection including 
on the website 

 Notify anyone who 
requested to be 
notified of adoption 

 No community 
engagement takes 
place at this stage 

 Issue press released 
announcing adoption 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

17 

 

APPENDIX D: 

Steps in Preparing a Neighbourhood Plan in Hart 

See Hart District Council Neighbourhood Planning web pages for guidance notes and 
support available; https://www.hart.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning 

Stage What the Council will do 
Designation as a 
Neighbourhood Area / or 
Neighbourhood Forum 

 Advise as to the information required to submit an 
application for designation as a Neighbourhood 
Area or Neighbourhood Forum;  

 Carry out consultation to bring to attention of those 
who live, work or carry out business in the relevant 
area 

 Invite representations in a period of no less than 6 
weeks; 

 Determine the outcome of the application and 
advise the Qualifying Body accordingly and publish 
the decision on the website. 

Evidence to support the 
neighbourhood plan  

 

 Advise on evidence available to support the Local 
Plan and other planning documents and sources of 
information which may be relevant to the 
neighbourhood plans  

Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) and 
Habitat Regulation 
Assessment (HRA) 

 Undertake an SEA and HRA Screening for the 
neighbourhood plan. If full assessments are 
required this is the responsibility of the Qualifying 
body. 

Pre-submission preparation 
and consultation 

 
 
 
 

 Provide a list of strategic development policies that 
the Neighbourhood Plan must comply with   

 Advise on the statutory process for pre-submission  

 Provide a contact list for statutory consultees as 
defined in Schedule 1 of The Neighbourhood 
Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as 
amended); · 

 Provide comments and advice on specific issues 
proposed within a NP where officer resources are 
available, where there is a direct link with the 
emerging Local Plan, and where there are issues 
likely to affect meeting the Basic Conditions; · 

 Provide a high level review of a fully drafted (or 
close to fully drafted) Plan prior to · formal 
consultation where officer resources are available 
and invited to do so by the qualifying body; and,  

 Provide a formal response to the Pre-Submission 
Consultation. 

Submission and Examination  

 
 

Upon Submission to Hart District Council, we will: · 

Page 79

https://www.hart.gov.uk/neighbourhood-planning


 

18 

 

Stage What the Council will do 
 
 
 

 Undertake a review to ensure that the Submitted 
Neighbourhood Plan complies with ·all the 
statutory requirements; · 

 Confirm in writing to the Qualifying Body whether 
the Plan meets these requirements; 

 Undertake statutory consultation on the 
Submission NP for a minimum of 6 weeks; · 

 Notify consultation bodies identified in the 
Consultation Statement; and,  

 Provide a formal response to the Submission Plan 
as part of the consultation process.  

In relation to independent Examination of the Plan, the 
Council will: ·  

 Appoint, and fund an Examiner for the Plan in 
discussion with the relevant Qualifying Body; · 

 Produce a summary of representations from the 
Submission consultation to be sent to the 
Examiner and to the Qualifying Body and placed 
on the website; · Communicate examination 
timetables and progress with the Qualifying Body;  

 Discuss the independent Examiners Report on the 
NP with the Qualifying Body;  

 Consider at Executive the Examiners 
recommendations and make a decision as to 
whether to proceed to referendum;  

 Amend the Plan in line with the Examiners Report 
in conjunction with the Qualifying Body; and,  

 Issue a Decision Statement setting out its reasons 
for accepting or otherwise the Examiners 
modifications. 

Referendum 

 

 Liaise with the Qualifying Body on the 
Referendum date (which will be subject to 
resources and workloads of the Elections team);  

 Organise, fund and run the local referendum 

  

 

 

  

Page 80



 

19 

 

APPENDIX E: 

 

Consultation procedures for Planning Applications 

 

Pre-submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed 
Development  

Statutory Requirements 
for Consultation and 
Notification  

Options for Additional 
Community Engagement 

 
Applications for planning 
permission or Listed 
Building Consent 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Applicant to serve notice on 
owner of land or, if unable to 
identify all the owners, then 
a site notice is displayed and 
press advertisement 
undertaken 

 
Encourage developers to 
discuss major development 
proposals with interested 
parties and local 
communities. 
For example, meet the 
parish council, notify 
immediate neighbours, 
conduct local exhibitions, 
publish newsletters, 
leaflets, online consultation 
etc. 
 
Publish the information on 
the Council’s website 
(except for any information 
which is of financial or 
commercial sensitivity) 

 

 

Post submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed Development Statutory Publicity 

All applications except for: 
Listed Building Consent 
Consent to display advertisements 
Prior approval for demolition of dwellings 
Agricultural determination as to whether 
prior approval of the Local 
Planning Authority is required 
Applications made under Section 191 and 
192 of the Act (applications for a 
certificate of lawful development for 
existing or proposed development or use) 

Details of valid planning applications 
entered on statutory register 
 
Site notice or neighbour notification 
letters 

Post submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed Development Statutory Publicity 

Applications (except those under Section 
191 or 192 of the Act) affecting the 

Press notice published by the Council 

Page 81



 

20 

 

character or appearance of a 
Conservation Area 

A site notice to be displayed by the 
Council for at least 7 days 

Applications (except those under Section 
191 or192 of the Act) affecting the setting 
of a Listed 
Building 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the 
Council for at least 7 days 

Application accompanied by an 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) when application initially submitted 
to Council 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the 
Council for at least 7 days 

Application accompanied by an EIA when 
EIA submitted to Council at a 
later date 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the 
applicant for at least 7 days 

Departure from the development plan Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the Council 
for at least 21 days 

Proposal affecting a public right of way Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the 
Council for at least 21 days 

Development of: 
10 or more dwellings, 
1000m2 or more of floorspace, or 
on a site larger than 0.5ha. 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the 
Council for at least 21 days or neighbour 
notification 

Development of: 
9 or fewer dwellings, 
less than 1000m2 floorspace, or 
on a site less than 0.5ha. 
(includes householder development) 
 

A site notice to be displayed by the 
Council at a prominent position near 
application site or at least 21 days or 
neighbour notification 

Post submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed Development Statutory Publicity 

Listed Building Consent 
except those where the proposals are for 
listed building consent to alter only the 
inside of a building listed Grade II or to 
vary/discharge conditions on such a 
consent already granted 

Press notice published by the Council 
A site notice to be displayed by the 
Council for at least 7 days 

Listed Building Consent 
where the proposals are to alter only the 
inside of a building listed Grade II or to 
vary/discharge conditions on such a 
consent already granted 

Nil 

Consent to display advertisements Nil 

Applications to undertake works to trees 
covered by Tree Preservation Orders 

Details of applications entered on 
statutory register 

Notifications of intent to carry out work to 
trees in a Conservation Area not subject 
to a Tree Preservation Order 

Details of notifications entered on 
statutory register 

Page 82



 

21 

 

Determination for demolition of dwellings 
as to whether prior approval of Local 
Planning Authority is required 

Press notice published by the applicant 

Prior approval for the method of 
demolition and restoration of site 
associated with the demolition of 
dwellings 

Nil 

Agricultural determination as to whether 
prior approval of Local Planning Authority 
is required 

Nil 

Agricultural prior approval where prior 
approval of the Local Planning Authority 
is required for the siting, design and 
external appearance 

Press notice published by the applicant 
for a period of not less than 21 days 
beginning with the date on which the 
application is submitted. 

Post submission of planning application 
 

Nature of Proposed Development Statutory Publicity 

Telecommunications prior approval 
(Permitted development where prior 
approval of the Local Planning Authority 
is required for siting and appearance) 

A site notice to be displayed by the 
Council for at least 21 days or neighbour 
notification 

Applications under Section 191 of the Act 
(application for certificate of lawful 
development for existing development or 
use) 

Nil 

Applications under Section 192 of the Act 
(application for certificate of lawful 
development for proposed development 
or use) 

Nil 

Change of use prior approval (permitted 
development where prior 
approval of Local Planning Authority is 
required, depending on type, of transport, 
noise, flood risk, or contamination) 

As appropriate, Highways Agency, Local 
Highway Authority, Environment Agency 
or Environmental Health giving 21 days in 
which to make comments. 

Prior approval of enlarged residential rear 
extension  

Notification to adjoining neighbours 
setting out details of extension and giving 
at least 21 days in which to make 
comment. 

   

 

 

Notes: 

 Letters of notification may extend beyond the statutory minimum 
subject to Officer discretion. 

 All initial notification letters will give 21 days for comment. 

 Consultation with statutory consultees and other amenity bodies is 
undertaken as appropriate in line with both statutory requirements and 
circular advice. 

Page 83



 

22 

 

 Where significant amendments to the application are accepted, further 
notification with adjoining owners and statutory consultees (as 
appropriate) will be undertaken. A minimum period of 14 days will be 
given for comment. 

 
 

 Definition of ‘Adjoining Property’: 
 

a) Any neighbouring property that shares a common boundary with the 
land subject to the proposed development. 
b) Where the proposed development is in a sub-divided building (e.g. a 
flatted property) and neighbouring land is NOT a sub-divided building - all 
parts of the building adjoining or within 4m of the part subject to the 
application, plus all parts of the building directly above and below. (a) 
above also applies. 
c) Where the proposed development is NOT a sub-divided building but 
neighbouring land comprises a sub-divided building (e.g. a flatted 
property) - only those parts of the sub-divided building that share a 
common boundary with the land for which the development is proposed, 
plus all parts of the building directly above and below those parts. 
d) Where the proposed development is in a sub-divided building (e.g. a 
flatted property) 
AND neighbouring land also consists of a sub-divided building – we will 
follow (b) and (c) above. 

 

 

  

Page 84



 

23 

 

APPENDIX F: 

Commenting on planning applications 

Comments on planning applications can be in support or object to a proposal but 

they must address material planning considerations if the Council is to take them into 

account in making its decision.  They must relate to planning laws, which aim to 

regulate development and use of land in the public interest.  Your comments must 

also relate to the development that is being proposed. 

The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person 
against the activities of another.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and 
private interests, but this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not 
whether owners and occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience financial 
or other loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal would 
unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings which ought 
to be protected in the public interest. 
 
When we make decisions on planning applications: 

Matters that CAN be taken into account 

Local planning policies and 
guidance 
 

Government advice 

Effect on the street scene or area 
 

Size, layout and density of 
buildings 

Design, appearance and 
materials 
 

Adequacy of car parking 

Traffic generation and safety 
 

Overlooking and loss of privacy 

Noise and disturbance 
 

Ground contamination 

 

Matters that CANNOT be taken into account 

Loss of property value Private rights of way  

Disturbance from construction 
works 

Matters covered by leases or 
covenants 

Competition from other uses Ownership rights 

Land and boundary disputes Private issues about drains 
 

Property maintenance issues The identity or personal 
characteristics of the applicant 

The need for development 
(except in certain defined 
circumstances) 

The loss of a view 
 

 

 

 

Page 85



 

24 

 

Why can’t they be taken into account in planning decisions? 

That is not to say that these matters are not important, or may eventually prevent the 

development taking place, but they do not relate to planning law, and are often 

controlled through some other legislation. 

How long do I have to make comments? 
Comments will be taken into account until the point of determination although we 
encourage them to be sent as soon as possible. If they are received outside the time 
limit, you will miss the opportunity to have them taken into account. Please also note 
that they cannot be treated in confidence and will be available to the public. 

 
Can I discuss the application? 
If you are concerned about the proposal or need clarification before writing, you can 
talk to the case planning officer. Your local district councillor will also be able to listen 
to your views but will not be able to discuss the merits of the case with you as this 
may prevent them speaking about the application if it is to be dealt with at 
committee. 
 
Details of your councillor can be found on the Council's website or you can contact 
Planning Services for the information on 01252 774419 or by email to 
planningadmin@hart.gov.uk 
 
What will happen to my comments? 
Any comments you make within the set time limits will be taken into account in 
reaching a decision.  However, planning staff and councillors have to consider every 
aspect of the application and all relevant issues and the final decision may be 
contrary to your views. 
 

 

  

Page 86



 

25 

 

APPENDIX G:  

Library and Parish & Town Council contact details: 

Public libraries (run by Hampshire County Council) 
For opening times see https://www.hants.gov.uk/librariesandarchives 
 
Fleet Library 
236 Fleet Road, Fleet, Hampshire GU51 4BX 
 
Yateley Library 
School Lane, Yateley, Hampshire GU46 6NL 
 
Odiham Independent Community Library (run by Odiham Parish Council as a 
book exchange) for further details go to 
https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/home/library 
The Bury, Odiham RG29 1NB 
 
 
Town and Parish Council contact details 
 
Blackwater and Hawley Town Council 
Hawley Leisure Centre, Fernhill Road, Hawley Green, Blackwater GU17 9BW 

: 01276 33050 / 35411 

: enquiries@blackwaterandhawleytowncouncil.gov.uk 

 
Bramshill Parish Council 
Email: clerk.bramshill@btconnect.com 
 
Church Crookham Parish Council 
Church Crookham Community Centre, Boyce Road, Crookham Park, GU52 8AQ 

: 01252 626793 

: clerk@churchcrookham.org.uk 

 
Crondall Parish Council 
PO Box 623, Farnham, Surrey GU9 1HB 

: 07510 917232 

: clerk@crondall-pc.gov.uk 

 
Crookham Village Parish Council 
Daegmarsfield Farm, Church Lane, Dogmersfield, RG27 8SZ 

: 01252 810568 

: clerk@crookhamvillage.org.uk 

 
Dogmersfield Parish Council 

: 01252 214054 

: clerk@dogmersfieldparish.co.uk 

 
Elvetham Heath  

Page 87

https://www.hants.gov.uk/librariesandarchives
https://odihamparishcouncil.gov.uk/home/library
mailto:enquiries@blackwaterandhawleytowncouncil.gov.uk
mailto:clerk.bramshill@btconnect.com
mailto:clerk@churchcrookham.org.uk
mailto:clerk@crondall-pc.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@crookhamvillage.org.uk
mailto:clerk@dogmersfieldparish.co.uk


 

26 

 

The Key Centre, The Key, Fleet, Hampshire, GU51 1HA 

: 01252 819204 

: office@elvethamheath-pc.org.uk 

 
Eversley Parish Council  
PO Box 1246, Yateley, Hampshire, GU47 7FR 

: 01252 876924 

: clerk@eversley-pc.gov.uk 

 
Ewshot Parish Council 

: 01256 397009 

: clerk@ewshotpc.com 

 
Fleet Town Council 
The Harlington, 236 Fleet Road, Fleet, Hampshire GU51 4BY 

: 01252 625246 

: clerk@fleet-tc.gov.uk 

 
Greywell Parish Council 

: 01256 861371 

: parishclerk@greywell.info 

 
Hartley Wintney Parish Council 
Parish Office, 1st Floor, Appleton Hall, West Green, Road, Hartley Wintney, Hook, 
Hampshire RG27 8RQ 

: 01252 845152 

: clerk@hartleywintney.org.uk / admin@hartleywintney-pc.gov.uk 

 
Heckfield Parish Council 

: 07515 777 060 

: clerk.heckfield@gmail.com 

 
Hook Parish Council 
Hook Community Centre, Ravenscroft, Hook, Hampshire RG27 9NN 

: 01256 768573 or 768687 

: clerk@hook.gov.uk 

 
Long Sutton and Well Parish Council 

: 07792 463611 

: clerk@longsutton.com 

 
Mattingley Parish Council 

: 07515 777 060 

: clerk.mattingley@parish.hants.gov.uk 

 
Odiham Parish Council 
Odiham Parish Council Office, The Bridewell, The Bury, Odiham, Hampshire 
RG29 1NB 

Page 88

mailto:office@elvethamheath-pc.org.uk
mailto:clerk@eversley-pc.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@ewshotpc.com
mailto:clerk@fleet-tc.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@hartleywintney.org.uk
mailto:clerk@hook.gov.uk
mailto:clerk@longsutton.com


 

27 

 

: 01256 702716 

: clerk@odiham.org.uk 

 
Rotherwick Parish Council 

: 01252 492136 / 07792 463611 

: clerk@rotherwick.org.uk 

 
South Warnborough Parish Council 

: 07792 463611 

: clerk.swparishcouncil@gmail.com 

 
Winchfield Parish Council 

: winchfieldparishclerk@outlook.com 

 
Yateley Town Council 
Council Offices, Reading Road, Yateley, Hampshire GU46 7RP 

: 01252 872198 

: office@yateley-tc.gov.uk 

 

Page 89

mailto:clerk@odiham.org.uk
mailto:clerk@rotherwick.org.uk
mailto:clerk.swparishcouncil@gmail.com
mailto:office@yateley-tc.gov.uk


 1  

CABINET 

 

DATE OF MEETING: 2 SEPTEMBER 2021 
  
TITLE OF REPORT: HART PROPERTY HOUSING COMPANY 
  
Report of:  Joint Chief Executive 

 
  
Cabinet Portfolio:  Deputy Leader and Finance & Corporate Services 

and Comercialisation 
  
Key Decision No 
  
Confidentiality Non Exempt 

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 The purpose of this report is to confirm the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

nominations for the Hart Property Management Company Scrutiny Panel and 
also to agree an update to the Key Worker lettings policy. 

  
2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
  
 Cabinet agrees  

A. that Cllrs Davies, Farmer, Harward, and Smith comprise the 2001/2022 
Hart Property Management Company Scrutiny Panel which shall meet 
once a year to oversee company activity, provide strategic guidance, and 
advise the Council in its capacity as shareholder. 
 

B. that the definition of ‘Key worker’ status in the adopted Lettings Policy 
should include reference to  

a. essential full time charity staff delivering key frontline services in 
the local Charity sector, 

b. those employed in the Prison and Probation services and  
c. workers maintaining border security  

 
C. the Head of Corporate Services be authorised to make future minor 

adjustments to the Local Lettings Plan as an when appropriate. 
  
3 CONSIDERATION 
  
3.1 The Governance Structure for the Hart Property Management Company (the 

Company) include reference to the setting up of a Company Scrutiny Panel.  
This is to be a sub-committee of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and is to comprise three members appointed annually by 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. It is to meet once per year to oversee 
company activity, provide strategic guidance, and advise the Council in its 
capacity as shareholder. Overview and Scrutiny Committee has nominated 
one member from each political Group (Cllrs Davies, Harward, and Farmer) 
but has also asked that a further Councillor (Cllr Smith) be added to the 
Panel. 

Page 90

Agenda Item 9



 2  

  
3.2 In discussion with the Company a request has been made that the definition 

of key worker status be extended to include full time employees of local 
charities. Furthermore, by accidental omission, it would also appear 
appropriate to amend the list to include those employed within the Prison, 
and Probation services an also those involved in maintaining boarder 
security.  

  
9 ACTION 
  
9.1 The Head of Corporate Services will in future update the proposed Lettings 

Plan as and when necessary. 
 

 
 
Contact Details: Daryl Phillips: daryl.phillips@hart.gov.uk 
 
Background papers:  

 

 

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 

 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Cabinet 3 June 2021 - Hart Property 
Management Company  

       

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 20 July 
2021 – Hart Property Management 
Company 

       

  

Page 91



 

CABINET 
 

DATE OF MEETING: 2 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

TITLE OF REPORT: WEBSITE REDESIGN PROJECT 
 

Report of:  Head of Corporate Services 
 

Cabinet Portfolio:  Digital 
 
Key Decision 

 
Yes 
 

 The recommendation in this report relates to a Key 
Decision as it will result in the Council incurring 
expenditure of over £30,000.  The decision has been 
included in the Forward Plan. 
 

Confidentiality Non Exempt 
  

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 
 
 

To seek Cabinet endorsement of the proposed website redesign project and 
to enable it to commence the procurement process. 

2 
 

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 That Cabinet approves the commencement of the website redesign project 
subject to a further report to Cabinet to confirm costings and specification 
following the completion of the procurement exercise. 
 

3 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

3.1 
 

Hart’s website is used on average by 35,000 hits per month and provides 
news and service area information alongside entry points to key transactional 
services such as Revenue and Benefits, Planning and Parking.  
 

3.2 The website content management system (CMS) has been in place for eight 
years. The CMS needs to be replaced for the following reasons. 

 The current system is end of life in Nov 2022 and updates and security 
patches will discontinue in 15 months’ time. The site performance will 
degrade over time and the platform will be unsupported and insecure 

 Hart published its accessibility statement in Sept 2020 setting out the 
ambition to attain Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.1 AA 
compliance by April 2021. However, the website has a number of issues 
in the core code which will not be resolved 

 Oxford Web Applications (OWA) provide hosting and support services. 
This relationship began in 2013 but has not been reviewed, benchmarked 
or market tested since then 

 62 forms on the site are routed through to service area inboxes. Service 
requests received via the website’s basic forms package need to be 

Page 92

Agenda Item 10



 

rekeyed into business applications resulting in inefficiency and process 
delays. 

 
3.3 This project also presents an opportunity to review the amount and type of 

information we hold on the site. There are large amounts of content that is not 
consumed by the user. There is no consistent or coordinated approach to the 
management of content across the business. In addition, the corporate tone 
of voice has become diluted, creating an inconsistent customer experience. 
 

3.4 Council adopted the Digital Strategy in June 2019. Included within the 
strategy roadmap was the redesign of the website. The ambition was to 
include bespoke customer accounts, properly integrated web forms, 
geographical mapping and integration with 3rd party hosted systems. 
 

3.5 
 

Recognising these points and in line with the Contract Standing Orders the 
proposal is to run a competitive procurement process. This is due to start 
from September 2021 the principle of the using the Digital earmarked reserve 
is agreed to deliver the project 
 

4 
 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 

4.1 The objective is to deliver a new website to offer an improved digital 
experience for all visitors to the site. The specification for the new website 
requirements is still being drafted but the final specification will be informed 
by the procurement exercise. However, the ambition is to improve online 
service and: 

 enhance the user experience across the site with a new design, 
structure, and refreshed content 

 improve the customer journey to third party partners 

 integrate wherever practicable online forms with back-office 
applications 

 develop end to end services on priority services using self service 
 

4.2 
 

Four options have been considered in the business case and are 
summarised below. 
 

Merits Drawbacks 

Option 1. Do nothing 

 Current stability and reliability of 
CMS 

 Availability of technical support from 
OWA 
 

 Site is out of support and becomes 
technically vulnerable from Nov ‘22 

 Degradation in SEO, user 
experience, security and 
accessibility over period of time  

 Additional support costs to manage 
security flaws 

 Won’t provide channel shift 
capabilities or Digital Strategy 
priorities  
 

Option 2. Migrate to Drupal 9 using current agency  

 Existing proposal to manage 
transition to new version & include 

 No market testing of agencies for 
support & hosting 

Page 93



 

research, identification and module 
plan required for migration 

 Phased redevelopment to include 
functional overhaul with updated 
design and user interface  

 Known costs and timescales with 
OWA proposal 

 Content editors familiar with Drupal 
as CMS 

 Frustrations with current 
relationship with OWA ie lack of 
proactive support for accessibility 

 No analysis of Drupal CMS 
suitability of future requirements of 
digital platform 

 Procurement/ standing orders 
compromised due to existing 
contract length with OWA 

 Complex migration  
 

Option 3. Go to market, procure agency, design & build new CMS 

 Test market and look for improved 
commercial terms on support and 
hosting  

 Test market for CMS suitability 
based on current & future 
requirements  

 Refresh website design & structure 
to latest website design trends  

 Build in accessibility to ensure min. 
AA compliance with WCAG 2.1 

 Longer phase to commence 
engagement in content migration 
 

 Longer time frame for delivery  

 Develop relationship and trust with 
new agency  

 Resource intensive in procurement 
activity and agency selection  
 

Option 4. Go to market, procure agency, build Digital Experience platform 

 One provider to deliver modular 
CMS & CRM solution  

 Improve self-service offer with new 
portal for range of services  

 Single view of customers and break 
down of silos across the Council  

 Deliver personalised targeted 
services   

 Potential integration into third party 
CRM solutions (Capita and BDBC) 
adds complexity, cost and contract 
questions 

 No team resourced to manage 
customer interactions through the 
digital platform  

 Expensive solution depending on 
modules required  

 Data management issues 
 

 

4.3 
 

Option 3 is considered the most viable option based on anticipated cost and 
current resource availability to manage the project. With current CMS 
platforms offering a range of integration options, we will set out our 
requirements at procurement stage and investigate this further with the 
successful agency. 
 

4.4 We are putting the final touches to our requirements. Once we have agreed 
our specification, we will investigate the most appropriate framework to 
provide a cost-effective way of going to market. We will also ensure we are 
compliant with contract standing orders, to complete the procurement 
process.  
 

5.0 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 

5.1 SERVICE PLAN 
 

 Is the proposal identified in the Service Plan? Yes 

 Is the proposal being funded from current budgets? Yes 

Page 94



 

 
 

Have staffing resources already been identified and set 
aside for this proposal? 

Yes 

 
6.0 
 

 
LEGAL AND CONSTUTIONAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 No direct legal or constitutional issues arising from the recommendations 
 

7 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Previous years ear-marked reserves have been set aside to assist with the 
anticipated costs for the procurement of the website CMS system. 
 

7.2 The process to inform the proposed budget commenced with soft market 
testing between March - July 2021. This included demonstrations, 
researching innovations in the marketplace and contacting local authorities 
around their current content management systems and support 
arrangements, in order to get a good understanding of what was available. 
 

 

 
 
7.3 
 
 

The Communication Team are not resourced to manage a project of this size. 
A Project Support role will be factored into the budget to cover the migration 
of content and general administration of the project. 
 

7.4 A high-level implementation plan has been produced. This will be developed 
further on approval of the award of the new contract with the design agency, 
but the target dates are set out in the table below: 
 

7.5 Implementation timescales 

Sept 2021 Budget approval sought from Cabinet 

 Procurement commences 

Oct  Selection assessment  

 Contract award letter issued 

Page 95



 

Nov  Discovery phase begins with agency 

Jan 2022 Development phase begins 

 Content review and migration begins 

June 2022 Testing begins 

July 2022 Anticipated launch of beta site 
  

 
7.6 

 
Taking all the above into account the anticipated cost of the project is 
approximately £141k. This will however be refined through the procurement 
exercise with the outcome being reported to Cabinet before any final decision 
is made to proceed with the project. 
 

 
 
8 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

 
8.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered this project at its meeting on 

17 August 2021.  

a) Members highlighted improving accessibility, enabling sufficient code for 
braille readers and usability as key factors in building the new site.  

b) Members queried the total costs of the project and the JCX confirmed that 
earmarked reserves of up to £150,000 have been set aside.  

c) Members questioned if all data could be retained on the site in archives 
and the JCX indicated that due to GDPR regulations the organisation 
would be unable to retain certain data. Historic Committee Meeting 
Minutes and Agendas and planning applications would be retained and 
available in the most compliant way.  

d) The JCX reminded members that the council is currently running a 
website survey to gather users opinions and gauge what new features 

Page 96



 

they would like to see. Feedback will be shared with members in the 
coming months.  

e) It was agreed that the Change and Digital Manager would provide a 
written response on the key differences between options three and four in 
the report. The Head of Corporate Services confirmed that option three 
will feature improved e-forms.  
 

The Committee support the project and the use of ear-marked reserves to 
fund this procurement phase of the project and recommended that: 

 Progress updates are to be more frequent than six months and more 
in line with decision stages. 

 More emphasis on the carbon neutral and climate change implications 
that the project may incur. 

 The Cabinet report to include a clearer indication of the total cost of 
the whole project. (see Section 7.2 and 7.6 above) 
 

8.0 
 
8.1 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
A full risk register will be developed. A key risk is the delivery of secure and 
efficient online services resulting in reputation of the council. 
 

9.0 EQUALITIES 
 
9.1 

 
The proposed website will ensure that the Council meet its obligations under   
W3C WCAG 2.1 (and be capable of delivering any subsequent updated 
requirements) and Public Sector Bodies (Websites and Mobile Applications) 
(No. 2) Accessibility Regulations 2018, ensuring future continued compliance. 
How will it be reported back to O&S and Cabinet in 6 months’ time. 
 

10.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are two broad consequences with regard to climate change: 
 
 We will test the green credentials of the digital agencies with the use of 

their hosting arrangements and if they measure their carbon emissions or 
that of their third-party support providers 

 The original business case cited Local Government Association and 
Socitm data to analyse the cost of shifting customers to online services. 
We are noticing a rise in visitors to the office again since pandemic 
restrictions were lifted. The promotion of simple and well-designed online 
services will aid the migration away from traditional customer channels 

  
11 ACTION 

 
1.1 
 
 
 

Subject to agreement to the principle of the project and the anticipated use of 
reserves to fund the project, a procurement exercise would now be 
undertaken.  The final project specification and cost will be reported back to 
after it had been informed by the procurement exercise. 

 

Contact Details: Steven Bennett / steven.bennett@hart.gov.uk 
 
  

Page 97



 

 
Appendix 1 
 
In line with Hart’s 2040 vision, the specific objectives of this project are: 
 
Create welcoming services that are inclusive and engaging 

 grow the number visitors accessing the site 

 improve the user experience by refreshing the information architecture and 

content across the site 

 enhance the accessibility of our online services and meet WCAG 2.1  

accessibility standards as a minimum 

Create efficient services available 24/7 

 future proof CMS platform to build and integrate more digital services 

 reduce maintenance and support with the ongoing commitment on 

accessibility, usability and other digital standards 

 remove unnecessary demand from other channels including emails and phone  

Develop our staff, training and empowering them to innovate 

 provide content editors with greater structure for their digital content 

 deliver robust training for content editors to manage and deliver web ready 

content 

 reduce time and work involved to create and publish different formats of 

content  

Develop partnerships to enable delivery 

 refresh commercial relationship with digital agency to support, maintain and 

host the website 

 engage with third party suppliers to provide seamless routes into portals and 

pages from the new CMS 

 

Page 98



 

CABINET 

 

DATE OF MEETING: 2 SEPTEMBER 2021 
  
TITLE OF REPORT: Release of reserves set aside to support clinically 

extremely vulnerable people in Hart 
  
Report of:  Head of Community 
  
Cabinet Portfolio:  Community 
  
Key Decision No 
  
Confidentiality Non Exempt 
  

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1 During 20/21 the council was awarded a total £247k by Hampshire County 

Council to deliver the Hart Response Hub and associated services to our 
clinically extremely vulnerable (CEV) residents. Much of this was spent during 
the financial year, and the rest was placed in ear marked reserves so that it 
could be spent on projects that would be mobilised during 21/22. 
 

1.2 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for the remaining grant 
funding to be moved from capital to revenue budgets so that it can used to 
deliver the projects set out in the agreed Supporting Communities Plan, 
delivering the “Here for Hart “programme.  
 

2 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
  
2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approve the transfer of the Clinically 

Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) monies (£143,421) from ear marked reserves 
into a revenue budget line and that the Head of Community Services be 
authorised to use the funds to support the delivery of the Supporting 
Communities Plan and the Here for Hart programme. 

  
3 BACKGROUND 
  
3.1 During the covid pandemic, Hampshire County Council triggered a civil 

emergency. One of the emergency response workstreams established was 
the “Welfare Workstream” which included the delivery of local response hubs 
and services to protect those deemed to be CEV, and other vulnerable 
residents who needed support. Hart District Council received £247k grant 
throughout the year from Hampshire County Council. Much of this was spent 
on establishing the Hart Response Hub, including setting up an IT 
infrastructure to deliver support to our communities through a network of 
volunteers, as well as practical assistance such as shopping vouchers, 
transportation and food deliveries for individuals and communities.  

 
3.2 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 11



 

£143,421 remains in ear marked reserves. This money is ring fenced; the 
original anticipation was that it would be used to support local communities 
impacted by the pandemic.  

 
4 

 
MAIN ISSUES 

  
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 

The council has taken a partnership approach in supporting residents through 
the pandemic and in “recovery” since lockdown measures were eased. The 
Supporting Communities Plan was developed through a series of “community 
sounding boards” and more latterly through a Here for Hart Working Group.  
 
During 2020/21, grant money was spent on developing the Hart Response 
Hub, provision of a covid hardship fund, awarding grants to community 
groups who support vulnerable residents, provision of a home help service, 
delivery of an employment support hub, on direct provision of food, transport 
and support as well as supporting health and well-being initiatives.  
 
Some projects could not be started within the financial year and so the 
funding was placed into earmarked reserves. This needs to be moved into a 
revenue budget so these projects – now sitting within the Here for Hart 
programme – can be mobilised.  
 
The Supporting Communities Plan aims to 

 Support communities to recover from the impacts of the pandemic 

 Better understand and tackle social and health inequalities 

 Nurture safe, supportive and inclusive communities 
 
The Plan brings together in one place the council’s priorities, partnerships 
and projects in support of these aims.   
 
The funding will deliver a range of projects set out in the Plan, including 
provision of grants for community organisations; exploring opportunities for 
community hub development; supporting and extending the community 
pantry; delivering the Hart Employment and Skills hub; delivering a number of 
campaigns promoting health and well-being; developing the Minding the 
Garden project; promoting digital inclusion; tackling homelessness as a result 
of the pandemic (and the ending of furlough) ;and supporting youth and 
community projects. 
 
The Supporting Communities Plan sets out the work programme in more 
detail.   
 
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/corporate/coronavirus/_layouts/
15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7BAB411A65-8386-46A3-BA6E-
5529C6A59C41%7D&file=Supporting%20Communities%20Plan.docx&action
=default&mobileredirect=true&wdhostclicktime=1629450497794&cid=0b3c22
2b-affb-4575-8b63-7293e9f86755 
 

5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
  
5.1 The Here for Hart programme has been developed in partnership with 

colleagues from other statutory bodies and the voluntary sector. The 

Page 100

https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/corporate/coronavirus/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7BAB411A65-8386-46A3-BA6E-5529C6A59C41%7D&file=Supporting%20Communities%20Plan.docx&action=default&mobileredirect=true&wdhostclicktime=1629450497794&cid=0b3c222b-affb-4575-8b63-7293e9f86755&wdLOR=c537A86A0-97F9-4199-8516-E581EA5A4C6A
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/corporate/coronavirus/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7BAB411A65-8386-46A3-BA6E-5529C6A59C41%7D&file=Supporting%20Communities%20Plan.docx&action=default&mobileredirect=true&wdhostclicktime=1629450497794&cid=0b3c222b-affb-4575-8b63-7293e9f86755&wdLOR=c537A86A0-97F9-4199-8516-E581EA5A4C6A
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/corporate/coronavirus/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7BAB411A65-8386-46A3-BA6E-5529C6A59C41%7D&file=Supporting%20Communities%20Plan.docx&action=default&mobileredirect=true&wdhostclicktime=1629450497794&cid=0b3c222b-affb-4575-8b63-7293e9f86755&wdLOR=c537A86A0-97F9-4199-8516-E581EA5A4C6A
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/corporate/coronavirus/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7BAB411A65-8386-46A3-BA6E-5529C6A59C41%7D&file=Supporting%20Communities%20Plan.docx&action=default&mobileredirect=true&wdhostclicktime=1629450497794&cid=0b3c222b-affb-4575-8b63-7293e9f86755&wdLOR=c537A86A0-97F9-4199-8516-E581EA5A4C6A
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/corporate/coronavirus/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7BAB411A65-8386-46A3-BA6E-5529C6A59C41%7D&file=Supporting%20Communities%20Plan.docx&action=default&mobileredirect=true&wdhostclicktime=1629450497794&cid=0b3c222b-affb-4575-8b63-7293e9f86755&wdLOR=c537A86A0-97F9-4199-8516-E581EA5A4C6A
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/corporate/coronavirus/_layouts/15/Doc.aspx?sourcedoc=%7BAB411A65-8386-46A3-BA6E-5529C6A59C41%7D&file=Supporting%20Communities%20Plan.docx&action=default&mobileredirect=true&wdhostclicktime=1629450497794&cid=0b3c222b-affb-4575-8b63-7293e9f86755&wdLOR=c537A86A0-97F9-4199-8516-E581EA5A4C6A


 

alternative option is to keep the funding in ear marked reserves, but this 
would mean that the council cannot deliver the programme. It was the original 
intention of the funding to do this.  
 

6 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
  
6.1 Relevance to the Corporate Plan and Or The Hart Vision 2040 
  
 Healthy Communities and People is one of the four key priorities in the 

corporate plan.  
  
 Service Plan 

 

Is the proposal identified in the Service Plan? Yes 

Is the proposal being funded from current budgets? Yes 

Have staffing resources already been identified and set 
aside for this proposal?  

Yes 

  

  
 Legal and Constitutional Issues 
  
 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
  
 Financial and Resource Implications 
  
 The paper seeks to move money from earmarked reserves into a revenue 

budget line for use during 21/22. The money is grant funding received for the 
designated purpose of supporting the vulnerable in our communities. 
 
There are no other financial implications.  
 

 Risk Management 
  
 There are no specific risks associated with the recommendation.   
  

Access to information and the public interest test 
 
There is nothing confidential in this report. 
 

9. 
 
9.1 

EQUALITIES 
 
The recommendation has no impact on any particular groups. It is simply to 
release funds into a budget line so that it can be spent on supporting our 
communities.  

  
10 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this report.  
  
11 ACTION 
  
11.1 Cabinet is asked to approve the request to move the funds from earmarked 

reserves to a current budget line. 

Page 101



 

 

 

Contact Details: Kirsty Jenkins - email:  kirsty.jenkins@hart.gov.uk 

 

Background papers:  

 

 

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it is 

not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Supporting Communities – a plan to 

promote community recovery and tackle 

inequalities in Hart 2021-2023 

 

https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/

:w:/g/corporate/coronavirus/EWUaQauG

g6NGum5VKcalnEEB8Gt82sYIzm8ekIWz

x4f45Q?e=WBnf4J&wdLOR=c2CF80E85-

D3D2-4B4D-8A2D-7780FDDCCB03 

 

 

N/A       

        

 

Page 102

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/schedule/12A
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1972/70/schedule/12A
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/corporate/coronavirus/EWUaQauGg6NGum5VKcalnEEB8Gt82sYIzm8ekIWzx4f45Q?e=WBnf4J&wdLOR=c2CF80E85-D3D2-4B4D-8A2D-7780FDDCCB03
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/corporate/coronavirus/EWUaQauGg6NGum5VKcalnEEB8Gt82sYIzm8ekIWzx4f45Q?e=WBnf4J&wdLOR=c2CF80E85-D3D2-4B4D-8A2D-7780FDDCCB03
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/corporate/coronavirus/EWUaQauGg6NGum5VKcalnEEB8Gt82sYIzm8ekIWzx4f45Q?e=WBnf4J&wdLOR=c2CF80E85-D3D2-4B4D-8A2D-7780FDDCCB03
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/corporate/coronavirus/EWUaQauGg6NGum5VKcalnEEB8Gt82sYIzm8ekIWzx4f45Q?e=WBnf4J&wdLOR=c2CF80E85-D3D2-4B4D-8A2D-7780FDDCCB03
https://hartdistrictcouncil.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/corporate/coronavirus/EWUaQauGg6NGum5VKcalnEEB8Gt82sYIzm8ekIWzx4f45Q?e=WBnf4J&wdLOR=c2CF80E85-D3D2-4B4D-8A2D-7780FDDCCB03


 

 

CABINET  
 

KEY DECISIONS/ WORK PROGRAMME, AND EXECUTIVE DECISIONS MADE 
 
September 2021 
 
Cabinet is required to publish its Key Decisions and forward work programme to inform the public of issues on which it intends to make policy or 
decisions.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee also notes the Programme, which is subject to regular revision.   
 

Report Title Date item 
agreed 

for report 

Outline/Reason for 
Report/Comments 

Original 
Due 
Date 

Revised 
Due 
Date 

Key 
Decision 

Y? 
Note 1 

Cabinet 
Member 
(Note 2) 

Service 
(Note 3) 

* This item 
may contain 

Exempt 
Information 

Quarterly Budget Monitoring - 
Outturn 

Quarterly Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider a 
report on Quarterly Budget 
Monitoring 

Sep 21 

Dec 21 

Mar 22 

  JR F  

Budget and Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny To give an early 
consideration of the emerging 
budget for 2021/22 and the MTFS 

Aug 21 Sep 21  JR F  

Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) 

Sep 21 To approve the update to the 
Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) 

Sep 21   GC P  

Hart Housing Property 
Management Company 
Scrutiny Panel 

Sep 21 To approve nominations from 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Membership for the Scrutiny panel 
for Hart Housing Property 
Management Company Ltd 

Sep 21    JR/RQ CS  

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 12



 

 

Report Title Date item 
agreed 

for report 

Outline/Reason for 
Report/Comments 

Original 
Due 
Date 

Revised 
Due 
Date 

Key 
Decision 

Y? 
Note 1 

Cabinet 
Member 
(Note 2) 

Service 
(Note 3) 

* This item 
may contain 

Exempt 
Information 

Website Redesign Project Sep 21 Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee to request 
authority to draw down from Digital 
Strategy earmarked reserves to 
fund the procurement of the new 
website project 

Sep 21   TC CS  

Funding for Clinically 
Extremely Vulnerable  

Sep 21 To request authority to release 
earmarked reserves set aside to 
assist the clinically extremely 
vulnerable 

Sep 21   SB H  

Welcome Back Fund Oct 21 Updated progress to the next 
stage of the Welcome Back Fund  

Oct 21   DN ALL  

IT Security Oct 21 To consider updates to IT Security Oct 21   JCX CS  

Country Park Concession Oct 21 Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider a 
new Country Park Concession 

Oct 21   AO TS  

Food and Health and Safety 
Service Plan 

Annual Recommend to Council that the 
annual Food Safety Plan be 
adopted 

Oct 21   SK P  

The Harlington Lease Oct 21 Approval of a new lease of the 
Harlington Centre with Fleet Town 
Council 

Oct 21   JR F  

P
age 104



 

 

Report Title Date item 
agreed 

for report 

Outline/Reason for 
Report/Comments 

Original 
Due 
Date 

Revised 
Due 
Date 

Key 
Decision 

Y? 
Note 1 

Cabinet 
Member 
(Note 2) 

Service 
(Note 3) 

* This item 
may contain 

Exempt 
Information 

Initiation of the Local Plan 
Review  

 Approval of a project plan for the 
Local Plan review 

Nov 21   GC P  

Consideration of savings 
options (level 2) for the 
MTFS 

 Post consideration by Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, to 
consider the opportunities 
presented by the Level 2 saving 
options for the MTFS 

Nov 21  Y JR F  

Homelessness Strategy Nov 21 Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider a 
new Homelessness Strategy 2022-
2027 

Nov 21 Dec 21  SB CSF  

Draft Communications and 
Engagement Strategy 

Dec 21 Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider a 
new Communications and 
Engagement Strategy 

Dec 21   TC CS  

Treasury Management 
2021/22 

(Half Year Report) 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider a 
Half Year review report on 
Treasury Management Strategy 
2020/21 

Dec 21   JR F  

Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

Annual To give an early consideration of 
the emerging budget for 2021/22 
and the MTFS 

Dec 21   JR F 
 

P
age 105



 

 

Report Title Date item 
agreed 

for report 

Outline/Reason for 
Report/Comments 

Original 
Due 
Date 

Revised 
Due 
Date 

Key 
Decision 

Y? 
Note 1 

Cabinet 
Member 
(Note 2) 

Service 
(Note 3) 

* This item 
may contain 

Exempt 
Information 

Draft 2021/22 Revenue 
Budget, Capital Programme 
and Council Tax Proposals 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to agree to 
recommend to Council the 2021/22 
Revenue Budget, Capital 
Programme and Council Tax 
Proposals 

Feb 22   JR F 
 

Draft 2021/22 Capital 
Strategy, Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Statement and Asset 
Management Plan 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to agree to 
recommend to Council the 2021/22 
draft Capital Strategy, the 2021/22 
Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and Asset Management 
Plan 

Feb 22   JR F 
 

Service Plans Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, agree the 
2021/22 Service Plans 

Apr 22   DN ALL 
 

Outside Bodies Annual To approve representation from 
the Council on identified outside 
bodies 

Jun 22   DN JCX 
 

Revenue and Capital Outturn 
2021/2022 

Annual Post consideration by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, to consider 
the Annual report on outturn 

Jul 22   JR F 
 

 
 
 

P
age 106



 

 

Note 1 
A “key decision” means an executive decision which, is likely to -  

a) result in Council incurring expenditure or the making of savings which amount to £30,000 or 25% (whichever is the larger) of the budget 
for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the area of the 
district of Hart. 

 
Note 2 

 Cabinet Members   
 DN  Leader   TC Digital  RQ  Commercialisation (Cn)  SB Community (Cy) 
 SK Regulatory   AO Environment  JR Finance and Corporate 

Services 
 GC Place 

 
Note 3 

 Service:      
 JCX Joint Chief 

Executive 
CS Corporate Services P Place Services 

 CSF Community Safety PP Planning Policy TS Environmental & Technical Services  
 F Finance H Community Services   
 SLS Shared Legal 

Services 
MO Monitoring Officer   

 
Note 4 
* This item may contain Exempt Information - Regulation 5 of the Local Authority (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 
 
EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  
 

    

    

    

 
 

P
age 107


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING Q1 - OUTTURN
	7 BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY
	8 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (SCI)
	21 09 02 APP A SCI Update

	9 HOUSING COMPANY PANEL
	10 WEBSITE REDESIGN PROJECT
	11 CEV FUNDING
	12 CABINET WORK PROGRAMME

